Exhibit 1

IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR THE DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA

ESTATE OF ELOUISE PEPION COBELL,)	
by and through her administrator Turk Cobell,)	
et al.,)	
Plaintiffs,)	
)	
V.)	Civil Action No.
)	1:96CV01285 (TFH)
)	
SALLY JEWELL, Secretary of the Interior, et a	al.,)	
)	
Defendants.)	
)	

PLAINTIFFS' REPORT ON OUTREACH BY TRIBE OR REGION

DAVID COVENTRY SMITH

D.C. Bar No. 998932 KILPATRICK TOWNSEND & STOCKTON LLP 607 14th Street, N.W. Washington, DC 20005 202-508-5865

WILLIAM E. DORRIS
GA. BAR NO. 225987
Admitted Pro Hac Vice
KILPATRICK TOWNSEND & STOCKTON LLP
1100 Peachtree Street Suite 2800
Atlanta, GA 30309
404-815-6500

Attorneys for Plaintiffs

December 18, 2015

TABLE OF CONTENTS

		Page
1.	Navajo Nation	1
2.	White Earth Band of Chippewa	3
3.	Puget Sound (Klallam)	3
4.	Tohono O'Odham Nation	4
5.	Choctaw Nation of Oklahoma	5
6.	Oglala Sioux Tribe of the Pine Ridge Reservation	6
7.	Creek Nation of Oklahoma	7
8.	Gila River Pima Maricopa Indian Community of the Gila River Indian Reservation of Arizona	7
9.	Turtle Mountain Band of Chippewa Indians	8
10.	Sisseton-Wahpeton Sioux Tribe of the Lake Traverse Reservation	9
11.	Kiowa Indian Tribe of Oklahoma	10
12.	Eastern Creek Descendants	11
13.	Confederated Tribes & Bands of the Yakama Indian Nation of the Yakama Reservation	12
14.	Rosebud Sioux Tribe of the Rosebud Indian Reservation	13
15.	Comanche Indian Tribe of Oklahoma	14
16.	Osage Tribe of Oklahoma	15
17.	Yankton Sioux Tribe of South Dakota	16
18.	Assiniboine & Sioux Tribes of the Fort Peck Indian Reservation	17
19.	Leech Lake Band	18
20.	Saginaw Chippewa Indian Tribe of Michigan	19
21.	Alaska Native Regional Corporations	19

		Page
22.	Citizen Band Potawatomi Indian Tribe of Oklahoma	22
23.	Red Lake Band of Chippewa Indians of the Red Lake Reservation	22
24.	Blackfeet Tribe of the Blackfeet Indian Reservation	23
25.	Prairie Band of Potawatomi Indians of Kansas	24
26.	Confederated Salish & Kootenai Tribes of the Flathead Reservation	24
27.	Standing Rock Sioux Tribe of the Standing Rock Reservation	24
28.	Chickasaw Nation of Oklahoma	25
29.	Santee Sioux Tribe of the Santee Reservation of Nebraska	26
30.	Seminole Nation of Oklahoma	26
31.	Bad River Band of the Lake Superior Tribe of Chippewa Indians of the Bad River Reservation	27
32.	San Carlos Apache Tribe of the San Carlos Reservation of Arizona	27
33.	Wisconsin Winnebago Indian Tribe of Wisconsin	28
34.	Confederated Tribes of Colville Reservation	28
35.	Fond du Lac Band	29
36.	White Mountain Apache Tribe of the Fort Apache Indian Reservation	30
37.	Lac Courte Oreilles Band of Lake Superior Chippewa Indians of the Lac Courte Oreilles Reservation of Wisconsin	31
38.	Cheyenne-Arapahoe Tribes of Oklahoma	31
39.	Salt River Pima-Maricopa Indian Community of the Salt River Reservation	32
40.	Keweenaw Bay Indian Community of L'Anse, Lac Vieux Desert & Ontonagon Bands of Chippewa Indians of the L'Anse	33
41.	Cheyenne River Sioux Tribe of the Cheyenne River Reservation	34
42.	Ponca Tribe of Indians of Oklahoma	34

		Page
43.	Arapahoe Tribe of the Wind River Reservation	35
44.	Devils Lake Sioux Tribe of the Devils Lake Sioux Reservation	35
45.	Red Cliff Band of Lake Superior Chippewa Indians of Wisconsin	35
46.	Three Affiliated Tribes of the Fort Berthold Reservation	36
47.	Pawnee Indian Tribe of Oklahoma	37
48.	Hoopa Valley Tribe of the Hoopa Valley Reservation	37
49.	Shoshone Tribe of the Wind River Reservation	38
50.	Omaha Tribe of Nebraska	38
51.	Absentee-Shawnee Tribe of Indians of Oklahoma	38
52.	Yurok Tribe of the Hoopa Valley Reservation	39
53.	Nez Perce Tribe of Idaho	39
54.	Ute Indian Tribe of the Uintah & Ouray Reservation	40
55.	Crow Tribe of Montana	40
56.	Mille Lacs Reservation.	40
57.	Fort Belknap Indian Community of the Fort Belknap Reservation of Montana	41
58.	Winnebago Tribe of the Winnebago Reservation of Nebraska	42
59.	Otoe-Missouri Tribe of Oklahoma	42
60.	Kickapoo Tribe of Oklahoma (Includes Texas Band of Kickapoo Indians)	42
61.	Shoshone-Bannock of Fort Hall	43
62.	Eastern Shawnee Tribe of Oklahoma	43
63.	Seneca Nation of New York	43
64.	Confederated Tribes of the Umatilla Reservation	44
65.	Bois Forte Band (Nett Lake)	44

		Page
66.	Iowa Tribe of Kansas & Nebraska	44
67.	Quechan Tribe of Fort Yuma of California & Utah	45
68.	Delaware Tribe of Western Oklahoma	45
69.	Crow Creek Sioux Tribe of the Crow Creek Reservation	45
70.	Menominee Indian Tribe of Wisconsin	45
71.	Confederated Tribes of the Warm Springs Reservation of Oregon	45
72.	Walker River Paiute Tribe of the Walker River Reservation	46
73.	Pueblo of Laguna	46
74.	Chippewa-Cree Indians of the Rocky Boys Reservation	46
75.	Tulalip Tribes of the Tulalip Reservation	47
76.	Stockbridge-Munsee Community of Mohican Indians of Wisconsin	47
77.	Washoe Indians of Nevada & California	47
78.	Covelo Indian Community of the Round Valley Reservation	47
79.	Pueblo of Taos	48
80.	Wyandotte Tribe of Oklahoma	48
81.	Wichita Indian Tribe of Oklahoma	48
82.	Pala Band of Luiseno Mission Indians of the Pala Reservation	49
83.	Lummi Tribe of the Lummi Reservation	49
84.	Hannahville Indian Community of Wisconsin Potawatomie Indians of Michigan	50
85.	St. Croix Chippewa Indians of Wisconsin	50
86.	Karuk Tribe of California	50
87.	Hopi Tribe of Arizona	51

		Page
88.	Hualapai Tribe of the Hualapai Indian Reservation	51
89.	Keweenaw Bay Chippewa	51
90.	Fort McDowell Mohave-Apache Indian Community, Fort McDowell Band of Mohave Apache Indians of the Fort McDowell	52
91.	Mescalero Apache Tribe of the Mescalero Reservation	52
92.	Makah Indian Tribe of the Makah Indian Reservation	52
93.	Morongo Band of Cahuilla Mission Indians of the Morongo Reservation	52
94.	Ponca Tribe of Nebraska	53
95.	Kickapoo Tribe of Indians of the Kickapoo Reservation in Kansas	53
96.	Swinomish Indians of the Swinomish Reservation	53
97.	Fort Mojave Indian Tribe of Arizona	53
98.	Zuni Tribe of the Zuni Reservation	54
99.	Puyallup Tribe of the Puyallup Reservation	54
100.	Flandreau Santee Sioux Tribe of South Dakota	55
101.	Kaibab Band of Paiute Indians of the Kaibab Indian Reservation	55
102.	Prairie Island Indiana Community of Minnesota Mdewakanton Sioux Indians of the Prairie Island Reservation	55
103.	Rincon Band of Luiseno Mission Indians of the Rincon Reservation	55
104.	Chemehuevi Indian Tribe of the Chemehuevi Reservation	56
105.	Forest County Potawatomi Community of Wisconsin Potawatomi Indians	56
106.	Shoshone-Paiute Tribes of the Duck Valley Rancheria	56
107.	Nooksack Indian Tribe of Washington	56
108.	Confederated Tribes of the Goshute Reservation	57

		Page
109.	Cowlitz Indian Tribe	57
110.	Lower Sioux Indian Community of the Minnesota Mdewakanton Sioux Indians of the Lower Sioux Reservation	57
111.	Te-Moak West Shoshone (Elko)	57
112.	Iowa Tribe of Oklahoma	58
113.	Kalispell Indian Community of the Kalispell Reservation	58
114.	Upper Skagit Indian Tribe of Washington	58
115.	Ak Chin Indian Community of Papago Indians of Maricopa	58
116.	Paiute-Shoshone Tribe of Fallon	59
117.	Tule River Indian Tribe of the Tule River Indian Reservation	59
118.	Yavapai-Apache Indian Community of the Camp Verde Reservation	59
119.	Smith River Rancheria of California	60
120.	Skull Valley Band of Goshute Indians of Utah	60
121.	Port Gamble Indiana Community of the Port Gamble Reservation	60
122.	Kaw Indian Tribe of Oklahoma	60
123.	Cocopah Tribe of Arizona	61
124.	Paiute-Shoshone Tribe of Fallon Reservation & Colony	61
125.	Squaxin Island Tribe of the Squaxin Island Reservation	61
126.	Havasupai Tribe of the Havasupai Reservation	61
127.	Santa Rosa Indian Community of the Santa Rose Rancheria of California	62
128.	Capitan Grande Band of Diegueno Mission Indians of California	62
129.	Yavapai-Prescott Tribe of the Yavapai Reservation	62

		Page
130.	Agua Caliente Band of Cahuilla Indians of the Agua Caliente Indian Reservation	62
131.	Big Valley Rancheria of Pomo & Pit River Indians of California	63
132.	Picayune Rancheria of Chukchansi Indians of California	63
133.	Jamestown S'klallam Tribe of Washington	63
134.	Confederated Tribes of the Grand Rhonde Community of Oregon	63
135.	Northfork Rancheria of Mono Indians of California	64
136.	Confederated Tribes of the Siletz Reservation	64
137.	Mississippi Band of Choctaw Indians	64
138.	Lower Elwha Tribal Community of the Lower Elwha Reservation	64
139.	Pueblo of Isleta	64
140.	Coast Indian Community of Yurok Indians of the Resighini Rancheria	65
141.	Shakopee Mdewakanton Sioux Community of Minnesota (Prior Lake)	65
142.	Camp Band of the Diegueno Mission Indians of the Campo Indian Reservation	65
143.	Santa Rosa Band of Cahuilla Mission Indians of the Santa Rosa Reservation	66
144.	Potawatomi-Pokagon Band	66
145.	Big Sandy Rancheria of Mono Indians of California	67
146.	Fort Bidwell Indian Community of Paiute Indians of the Fort Bidwell Reservation.	67
147.	Pueblo of Acoma	67
148.	Pueblo of Jemez	67
149.	Dry Creek Rancheria of Pomo Indians of California	67
150.	Pascua Yaqui Tribe of Arizona	68

		Page
151.	Upper Sioux Indian Community of the Upper Sioux Reservation	68
152.	Pueblo of Santo Domingo	68
153.	Kickapoo Tribe of Texas	68
154.	Blue Lake Rancheria of California	69
155.	Yakima Public Domain	69
156.	Robinson Rancheria of Pomo Indians of California	69
157.	Grand River Band - Ottawa	69
158.	Grand Traverse Band of Michigan	70
159.	Little River Band of Ottawa	70
160.	Sault Ste. Marie Tribe of Chippewa Indians of Michigan	70
161.	Bay Mills Indian Community of Michigan	71
162.	Little Traverse Bay Band Odawa	71
163.	Other Tribes	71

1. Navajo Nation

Because of the size of the Navajo Reservation, the large number of Class Members who are listed as Navajo tribal members, and the language barriers, substantial time has been spent working on the Reservation and with tribal leaders, allottee associations, and tribal organizations in locating class members, including:

- On March 18-19, 2010, representatives of Class Counsel travelled to the Navajo Reservation and, accompanied by Navajo tribal members and interpreters, held informational meetings at Shi Shi Keyah ("this land, my land") Chapter House, Church Rock and Farmington.
- From February 8-10, 2011, Class Counsel, again accompanied by Navajo tribal members and interpreters, held informational meetings at the Torreon Chapter House, Church Rock and Farmington, on the Navajo Reservation, to discuss the Settlement and to collect information on Class Members.
- GCG spoke with a representative of the Inter Tribal Council of Arizona ("ITCA") who stated that the ITCA was willing to assist with locating class members who were members of Tribes that were ITCA members. The representative requested and received information for a number of tribes including the Navajo Nation to assist with outreach efforts.
- On July 15, 2013 and September 9-10, 2013, Class Counsel, David Smith, and representatives of GCG, accompanied by Navajo tribal members and interpreters, again held informational and town hall meetings in Gallup, New Mexico and Farmington, New Mexico to collect documentation, personally take questions, and assist individuals in determining

eligibility for the Settlement and the status of any claim. GCG brought its computer record system which enabled its representatives to look up individual's class and payment status, take address updates and input relevant documents and information.

- Efforts also were made to use local services to locate missing individuals.

 David Smith has worked closely with Ervin Chavez and the She Shi Keyah Allottee

 Association in locating missing individuals.
- GCG provided a list of WAU records for both living and deceased Class Members to the Coordinator for the Whitehorse Lake Chapter and to the Chapter Accounting Technician for the Navajo Nation Eastern Agency. Lists were sent also to representatives of the Sheep Springs and Crystal Chapters of the Navajo Nation. GCG unsuccessfully attempted to reach the White Rock Chapter. GCG spoke with a representative of the San Juan Chapter, who stated they were unable to help.
- On September 20-23, 2015, GCG representatives visited the BIA offices in Crownpoint, New Mexico to collect information and documentation regarding living and deceased Class Members.
- Representatives of Class Counsel have had discussions with tribal officials regarding using tribal enrollment records to locate missing Class Members and heirs but currently those records are not available.
- On January 11-15, GCG will be reviewing tribal records at the BIA Agency in
 Tuba City, Arizona, to obtain additional information to assist in distributions.

2. White Earth Band of Chippewa

- GCG contacted the Tribe for assistance with the Tribal Outreach Project, and a representative with the tribal offices agreed to assist. GCG provided a list of WAU records for both living and deceased Class Members. GCG received an updated list in response. GCG reviewed the information and updated its records and reached out directly to the individuals listed for further information.
- Because of the large number of White Earth tribal members remaining on the WAU list, Class Counsel David Smith visited the tribal offices for the White Earth Band in Ogema, Minnesota, on September 15, 2015, and received permission to review Tribal enrollment records. Representatives in the Enrollment Office were particularly helpful.
- The enrollment records were extensive and were reviewed by Mr. Smith and a representative from GCG at the offices of the Great Lakes Inter Tribal Council in Cass Lake, Minnesota, on September 23-24, 2015 and again on October 19-22, 2015. The Great Lakes Tribal Council, in particular its Director of Administration and its Enrollment Director, were very helpful in identifying records.
- Further, GCG representatives visited the BIA offices in Bemidji, Minnesota, in September 2015 to collect information and documentation regarding living and deceased Class Members.

3. **Puget Sound (Klallam)**

• GCG contacted the Tribe for assistance with the Tribal Outreach Project, and it agreed to assist. GCG provided the Tribe with a list of WAU records for both living and deceased Class Members. On December 5, 2013, GCG received an updated list in response.

GCG reviewed the information and updated its records and reached out directly to the individuals listed for further information.

 Also, on September 10, 2015, GCG representatives visited the BIA offices in Everett, Washington to collect information and documentation regarding living and deceased Class Members of the Tribe.

4. **Tohono O'Odham Nation**

- On March 29, 2010, Class Counsel held an informational meeting at the Tohono O'odham Reservation in Sells, Arizona to discuss the settlement. Again, on February 16, 2011, Class Counsel returned to Sells to hold another informational meeting on the Tohono O'odham Reservation to discuss the settlement and collect information regarding Class Members.
- In addition, GCG spoke with ITCA, which was willing to assist with locating Class Members who were members of the Tohono O'odham Nation. ITCA was provided a list of WAU records for both living and deceased Class Members for the Tribe.
- On October 1, 2013, Class Counsel David Smith contacted the Tohono
 O'odham Tribe's General Counsel for assistance and he forwarded a list of WAU records for the Tribe.
- In addition, at the recommendation of the Tribe's General Counsel, Mr. Smith began communicating directly with the San Xavier Allottee Association of the Tohono O'odham Nation which has been very helpful in providing information regarding Class Members and the heirs of those who are deceased.

- On September 29-30, 2015, GCG representatives visited the BIA offices in Sells, Arizona to collect information and documentation regarding living and deceased Class Members of the Tribe.
- In addition, David Smith again reached out to obtain approval to use tribal enrollment records to identify individuals on the WAU list and that request remains pending.

5. Choctaw Nation of Oklahoma

- On March 15, 2011, Class Counsel held an informational meeting at the Choctaw Reservation in Durant, Oklahoma, to discuss the settlement with Class Members, answer questions, and collect information.
- In addition, GCG contacted the Choctaw Tribe for assistance with the Tribal Outreach Project, and it agreed to assist. On September 30, 2013, GCG provided the Tribe with a paper copy of a list of WAU records for both living and deceased Class Members.
- On June 3, 2014, Class Counsel David Smith and GCG representatives attended an outreach meeting at the Choctaw Casino & Resort Conference Center in Durant to collect documentation, personally take questions, assist individuals in determining eligibility for the Settlement, the status of any claim, and identify living Class Members and heirs to eligible estates. GCG brought its computer record system which enabled its representatives to look up individual's class and payment status, take address updates and input relevant documents.
- On June 5, 2015, Class Counsel David Smith returned to the Choctaw Nation, meeting with representatives of the Real Estate office of the Tribe to follow up with issues regarding locating Class Members and heirs. After a lengthy meeting, Mr. Smith was able to

work out an arrangement with the Department of Justice to facilitate the identification of individuals on the WAU list who were Choctaw tribal members. He has kept in regular contact with the Tribe's representatives and they have recently provided a packet of information regarding the status of Class Members on the WAU list and probate information for those that are deceased. The Choctaw Nation has been very helpful in providing information to locate Class Members and the heirs of deceased Class Members.

6. Oglala Sioux Tribe of the Pine Ridge Reservation

- Class Counsel held meetings to discuss the settlement on March 7, 2010, and again on March 24, 2011, at the Pine Ridge Reservation in South Dakota to discuss the settlement and collect information regarding Class Members and the heirs of those that had passed.
- In addition, GCG contacted the Tribe for assistance with the Tribal Outreach Project, and it agreed to assist. GCG provided a list of WAU records for both living and deceased Class Members to a Clerk at the Oglala Lakota Enrollment Office. GCG received a list with updated information for heirs to eligible estates in response. GCG reviewed the information and updated its records and reached out directly to the individuals listed for further information.
- On July 10, 2014, Class Counsel Bill Dorris and GCG representatives held another outreach meeting at the Prairie Wind Casino & Hotel on the Pine Ridge Reservation to collect documentation, personally take questions, assist individuals in determining eligibility for the Settlement and the status of any claim, and to identify living Class Members and heirs to eligible estates. GCG brought its computer record system which

enabled its representatives to look up individual's class and payment status, take address updates and input relevant documents.

7. Creek Nation of Oklahoma

- On March 16, 2011, Class Counsel held an informational meeting at the Muscogee Creek Nation in Oklahoma for potential Class Members at which it discussed the settlement and collected information regarding Class Members and the heirs of those who were deceased.
- GCG contacted the Tribe for assistance with the Tribal Outreach Project, and a representative at the tribal offices agreed to assist. He requested that GCG submit a formal request in writing and a form letter for potential Class Members which GCG prepared and provided. GCG did not receive a further response to this correspondence. In February 2014, GCG sent a list to Grace Bunner following an email request. Shortly thereafter, the Muscogee Creek Nation National Council approved the posting of the list in high traffic areas.

8. Gila River Pima Maricopa Indian Community of the Gila River Indian Reservation of Arizona

• GCG spoke with a representative of the ITCA who stated that the ITCA was willing to assist with locating class members who were members of tribes that were Council members, including Gila River. The representative requested and was provided a list of WAU records for both living and deceased Class Members.

- Additionally, the Tribe published an announcement regarding the Cobell WAU list and a direct line to a GCG representative in the tribal newsletter, resulting in a large number of calls and updated addresses.
- Because of the large number of Gila River tribal members that remain on the WAU list, GCG will be reviewing BIA Pima Agency records relating to Gila River WAU tribal members on January 19-22, 2016.

9. Turtle Mountain Band of Chippewa Indians

- On February 15, 2011, Class Counsel held a meeting at the Turtle Mountain Reservation in Belcourt, North Dakota, to discuss the settlement and collect information regarding Class Members and the heirs of those who were deceased.
- In addition, GCG contacted the Tribe for assistance with the Tribal Outreach Project, and it agreed to assist. GCG provided a list of WAU records for both living and deceased Class Members to the Superintendent of the Turtle Mountain Band of Chippewa Tribal Government.
- On June 26, 2014, Class Counsel Bill Dorris and GCG representatives attended an outreach meeting at the Sky Dancer Casino Event Center in Belcourt, North Dakota, to collect documentation, personally take questions, assist individuals in determining eligibility for the Settlement and the status of any claim, and to identify living Class Members and heirs to eligible estates. GCG brought its computer record system which enabled its representatives to look up individual's class and payment status, take address updates and input relevant documents.

- Additionally, due to the number of WAU Class Members and deceased Class Members without documentation that GCG could distribute to heirs, GCG worked with the regional BIA office in Belcourt November 17- 19, 2015, to review updated records and contact information, as well as obtain probate orders or information on heirs so that distributions could be made. GCG was able to obtain many updated contacts, determine duplicate accounts, and retrieve probate orders so that distributions will be made.
- Additionally, GCG went to the Fort Totten agency of the BIA on November
 19-20, 2015 and similarly was able to successfully update information on WAU Class
 Members and deceased Class Members where GCG did not have documentation on heirs or to distribute.

10. Sisseton-Wahpeton Sioux Tribe of the Lake Traverse Reservation

- On March 10, 2010, Class Counsel, held a meeting at the Lake Traverse Reservation in South Dakota, to discuss the settlement.
- On February 27, 2011, Class Counsel returned to the Lake Traverse
 Reservation, again to discuss the settlement and to collect information regarding Class
 Members and the heirs of those who were deceased.
- GCG contacted the Tribe for assistance with the Tribal Outreach Project, and it agreed to assist. GCG provided the Tribe with a paper list of WAU records for both living and deceased Class Members to the Tribal Court. GCG received some updated information in response. GCG reviewed the information, updated its records and reached out directly to the individuals listed for further information.

• Because of the large number of Sisseton-Wahpeton Tribal members remaining on the WAU list, Class Counsel David Smith returned to the Lake Traverse Reservation on June 23, 2015, to get permission to use enrollment records for the Tribe to assist in locating Class Members and the heirs of those who were deceased who remained on the WAU list. He met with enrollment office representatives and provided them the list of remaining living and deceased tribal members who may be entitled to payment and he has continued to communicate with them directly.

11. Kiowa Indian Tribe of Oklahoma

- On March 14, 2011, Class Counsel held a presentation in Anadarko, Oklahoma, to which members of the Kiowa Tribe were invited to attend. The settlement was discussed and information was distributed, including claim forms, to facilitate the identification of Class Members and heirs of those who had passed.
- GCG sent a list to a representative of the Tribe but no response was received. Therefore, on June 2, 2014, another meeting was held in Anadarko at which David Smith and representatives of GCG were present and members of the Kiowa Tribe were invited to attend. The status of the settlement was discussed and information was distributed, including claim forms, to facilitate the identification of Class Members and heirs of those who had passed. GCG brought its computer record system which enabled its representatives to look up individual's class and payment status, take address updates and input relevant documents.
- Because of the large number of Class Members identified as Kiowa tribal members who continued to be listed on the WAU list, on May 4, 2015, David Smith traveled to the tribal headquarters and met with an employee in the enrollment office. On the evening

of May 4, 2015, David Smith held another meeting of Kiowa tribal members in Anadarko in an effort to identify individuals on the WAU list.

12. Eastern Creek Descendants

The records of the Department of Interior had a category of Class Members designated as "Eastern Creek." There is no federally recognized tribe known as "Eastern Creek. The Creek Confederacy was located principally in what is present day Georgia and Alabama. Many of the members of the Creek Confederacy were forcibly removed to present day Oklahoma. A segment of the Confederacy that was not removed is the Poarch Band of Creek Indians located today within the exterior boundaries of the State of Alabama and with tribal offices in Atmore.

• In April 2014 Class Counsel David Smith reached out to the Attorney General for the Poarch Band of Creek Indians, requesting assistance with the approximate 2000 individuals designated as "Eastern Creek" who remained on the WAU list. The Tribe agreed to assist and on May 8, 2014, was provided the WAU list which was published in the Tribal paper. What was discovered was that many on the "Eastern Creek" list were heirs of original Creek tribal members who may have received a judgment fund payment many years ago which had been placed in a minor IIM account because they were under 18. Many were not tribal members. Nevertheless, the Tribe designated a point person on Cobell matters who has done an exemplary job identifying tribal and non-tribal members on the list and assisting them with their claims. Both Mr. Smith and GCG have had extensive contact with the point person and the Tribe in general regarding Cobell related matters. Her assistance has resulted in the approval of affidavits of small estate by the Special Master and a uniform estate review procedure for deceased Class Members who were enrolled in the tribe.

- On May 6, 2015, David Smith met with the Tribe's point person in Atmore and discussed issues she was having with identifying the IIM account numbers for tribal members and non-tribal individuals at the OST office in Nashville, Tennessee, for the purpose of verifying class member status. As a result of the issues she raised, discussions were initiated with DOJ and OST about streamlining this process.
- Meanwhile, Class Counsel and GCG are working with the Poarch Band on other ways to verify class member status, and on October 7, 2015, the Tribe provided Class Counsel an updated list of potential Class Members to review for verification. GCG is scheduling a time with OST to review records of potential "Eastern Creek" records at the Tennessee Agency in Nashville.

13. Confederated Tribes & Bands of the Yakama Indian Nation of the Yakama Reservation

- On March 30, 2010, Class Counsel traveled to Toppenish, Washington, to discuss the settlement with members of the Confederated Tribes of the Yakama Indian Nation.
- Class Counsel returned on April 11, 2011, and held another meeting at which the settlement was again discussed and information was distributed, including claim forms, to facilitate the identification of Class Members and heirs of those who had passed.
- GCG contacted the tribe for assistance with the Tribal Outreach Project, and the enrollment office agreed to assist with its request upon receipt of a formal written request which GCG provided via email. GCG provided the Tribe with a list of WAU records for both living and deceased Class Members. On December 11, 2013, GCG received an updated list

in response and additional lists on December 18, 2013, December 31, 2013 and January 17, 2014. GCG reviewed the information, updated its records, and reached out directly to the individuals listed for further information.

• On October 14-16, 2015, GCG representatives visited OST/BIA/Tribal headquarters in Toppenish, Washington, to collect information and documentation regarding living and deceased Class Members remaining on the WAU list for the Yakama Nation.

14. Rosebud Sioux Tribe of the Rosebud Indian Reservation

- On March 8, 2010, Class Counsel traveled to the Rosebud Sioux Reservation within the exterior boundaries of the State of South Dakota, to discuss the settlement with tribal members.
- On March 20, 2010, Class Counsel also attended a meeting in Rapid City,
 South Dakota, attended by South Dakota tribes to discuss the settlement.
- Class Counsel returned to the Rosebud Reservation on February 23, 2011, and held another meeting at which the settlement was again discussed and information was distributed, including claim forms, to facilitate the identification of Class Members and heirs of those who had passed.
- GCG contacted the Rosebud Sioux Tribal Government for assistance with the Tribal Outreach Project, and it agreed to assist. GCG also spoke with the Community President of the He Dog Recognized Community, Rosebud Sioux, who was willing to assist. The Chief Clerk of Rosebud Sioux Tribal Court requested a written request for assistance and GCG complied with this request, sending a list of WAU records for both living and deceased Class Members to the Business Manager for the Rosebud Sioux Tribal

Government. Additionally, the Tribe published an announcement regarding the Cobell WAU list and a direct line to a GCG representative so that Class Members and potential heirs could contact them directly.

• On June 26, 2015, David Smith returned to the Rosebud Reservation and met with the enrollment office, sharing with them the remaining individuals on the WAU list identified as Rosebud Tribal members and obtained their assistance in providing additional identifying information.

15. Comanche Indian Tribe of Oklahoma

- On March 14, 2011, Class Counsel held an informational meeting for members of the Comanche Tribe in Lawton, Oklahoma, at which the settlement was discussed and information was distributed, including claim forms, to facilitate the identification of Class Members and heirs of those who had passed.
- On May 6, 2010, June 1, 2011, June 12, 2012, June 4, 2014 and June 3, 2015, David Smith presented updates on the Cobell Settlement at a symposium in Oklahoma City sponsored by the Oklahoma Supreme Court at which many Oklahoma tribal leaders, including Comanche leaders, were present.
- In 2013 and 2014, a representative of GCG was also present in order to distribute and receive information.
- In April 2014, GCG sent a list of missing Comanche tribal members to the Enrollment Director for the Tribe requesting further assistance.

- In May 2014, Class Counsel David Smith communicated with a representative of the Comanche Elder Community Center and on May 21, provided him a list of Comanche tribal members on the WAU list.
- On June 2, 2014, a meeting was held in Anadarko, Oklahoma, at which David Smith and representatives of GCG were present and members of the Comanche Tribe were invited to attend. The status of the settlement was discussed and information was distributed, including claim forms, to facilitate the identification of Class Members and heirs of those who had passed. Representatives from the Comanche tribal headquarters were present and were provided a list of individuals identified on the WAU list as Comanche Tribal members. GCG brought its computer record system which enabled its representatives to look up individual's class and payment status, take address updates and input relevant documents.
- Another meeting was held in Anadarko by David Smith on May 4, 2015, at which the Comanche WAU list was distributed and additional missing tribal members identified.

16. Osage Tribe of Oklahoma

- On May 6, 2010, June 1, 2011, June 12, 2012, June 4, 2014 and June 3, 2015, David Smith presented updates on the Cobell Settlement at a symposium in Oklahoma City sponsored by the Oklahoma Supreme Court at which many Oklahoma tribal leaders, including Osage leaders, were present. In 2013 and 2014, a representative of GCG was also present in order to distribute and receive information.
- Because of the large number of individuals identified as Osage tribal members
 on the WAU list, and the high value of those claims, David Smith reached out to the Osage

Tribe for assistance in identifying those individuals. He communicated with a leader of the Tribe and met with the head of the membership office on May 5, 2015, in Pawhuska, Oklahoma. The Tribe granted Mr. Smith access to its enrollment records. He then contacted the Department of Justice, who assisted in arranging a review of the related records at the BIA Osage Agency in Pawhuska.

- Accordingly, from June 30 to July 4, 2015, GCG representatives visited simultaneously the Agency and Tribal offices (and where necessary the state offices) to collect information and documentation regarding living members of the Osage Tribe on the WAU list and the heirs of those Class Members who had passed. The assistance of the Osage Tribe and Osage Agency resulted in a large number of previously unidentified Class Members and heirs being identified and millions of dollars being distributed.
- Additionally, GCG has worked closely with the Tribe to obtain determinations of heirships in order to facilitate distribution of high value Class Member estates without previously existing distribution documentation.

17. Yankton Sioux Tribe of South Dakota

- On March 11, 2010, Class Counsel held an informational meeting for members of the Yankton Sioux Tribe in Wagner, South Dakota.
- On March 20, 2010, Class Counsel also attended a meeting in Rapid City,
 South Dakota, attended by South Dakota tribes to discuss the settlement.
- On February 22, 2011, Class Counsel held a second informational meeting for members of the Yankton Sioux Tribe in Wagner at which the settlement was discussed and

information was distributed, including claim forms, to facilitate the identification of Class Members and heirs of those who had passed.

- Because of the large number of individuals remaining on the WAU list designated as Yankton Sioux tribal members, Class Counsel David Smith returned to the Yankton Sioux Tribe on June 25, 2015, to obtain permission to review tribal enrollment records. In addition, he met with tribal members as well as the head of the BIA Agency in Yankton, learning of the potentially large volume of helpful documentation that might be available there. Accordingly, he reached out to the Department of Justice to get permission to review WAU related records at the BIA Agency in Yankton, which helped facilitate a formal visit to that agency.
- On August 5-6, 2015, GCG representatives visited the BIA offices in Yankton, South Dakota, to collect information and documentation regarding living Class Members and the heirs of those who had passed.

18. Assiniboine & Sioux Tribes of the Fort Peck Indian Reservation

- On March 23, 2010, Class Counsel held an informational meeting for members of the Assiniboine and Sioux Tribes of the Fort Peck Reservation in Poplar, Montana.
- On February 16, 2011, Class Counsel held a second informational meeting at Fort Peck at which the settlement was discussed and information was distributed, including claim forms, to facilitate the identification of Class Members and heirs of those who had passed.

• GCG reached out to the Tribal Chairman's Office, and they agreed to provide information regarding living and deceased WAU Class Members. GCG subsequently received the Tribe's entire enrollment list. Using this information, GCG updated its records or reached out directly to the individuals listed for further information.

19. Leech Lake Band

- On April 14, 2011, Class Counsel held an informational meeting for members of the Leech Lake Band of Ojibwe Indians in Cass Lake, Minnesota, at which the settlement was discussed and information was distributed, including claim forms, to facilitate the identification of Class Members and heirs of those who had passed.
- GCG contacted the Tribe for assistance with the Tribal Outreach Project, and it agreed to assist. GCG provided the Tribe with a list of WAU records for both living and deceased Class Members. On June 24, 2014, GCG received an updated list in response. GCG reviewed the information and updated its records or reached out directly to the individuals listed for further information.
- Because a large number of individuals identified as Leech Lake tribal members remained on the WAU list, on September 15, 2015, Class Counsel David Smith had a meeting at the tribal offices of the Leech Lake Tribe in Cass Lake and met with a representative in the enrollment office of the Tribe, who agreed to make available tribal enrollment records and to assist where necessary.
- The enrollment records were reviewed by Mr. Smith and a representative from GCG at the offices of the Great Lakes Inter Tribal Council in Cass Lake, Minnesota, on September 23-24, 2015, and again on October 19-22, 2015.

GCG representatives visited the local BIA offices in Bemidji, Minnesota, in
 September 2015, to collect information and documentation regarding living Class Members
 and the heirs of those who had passed.

20. Saginaw Chippewa Indian Tribe of Michigan

- GCG contacted the Saginaw Chippewa Tribe for assistance with the Tribal Outreach Project, and it agreed to assist. GCG provided the Tribe with a list of WAU records for both living and deceased Class Members. On May 1, 2014, GCG received an updated list in response. GCG reviewed the information and updated its records or reached out directly to the individuals listed for further information.
- During the week of December 7, 2015, GCG visited the Sault Ste. Marie regional office of the BIA in order to review the records in its office. This was a very successful visit as GCG was able to obtain over 75% of all living WAU Class Members' updated contact information, and deceased Class Member records were updated with new contact information for their heirs or was provided with a probate order for which GCG will be able to distribute the estate award.

21. Alaska Native Regional Corporations

Under the Alaska Native Claims Settlement Act ("ANCSA"), Alaska is divided in to 12 resident Alaska Native regional corporations and one non-resident corporation. The Alaska Natives are shareholders of these entities. In addition there are 229 federally recognized Alaska Native Villages. The information regarding Class Members from Alaska received from Interior was broken down principally by the 12 regional corporations. Alaska

posed particular challenges. Class Members were dispersed over a wide area and locations were not always accessible.

- On March 31, 2011, Class Counsel held an informational meeting in Anchorage, Alaska, for Class Members in Alaska. Anchorage is the headquarters for the Calista Regional Native Corporation, although the region, itself, is located in western Alaska.
- On April 1, 2011, Class Counsel held an informational meeting in Fairbanks,
 Alaska, the headquarters for the Doyon Regional Corporation, Doyon, Ltd., for Class
 Members in Alaska.
- In February 2014, David Smith reached out by letter to each of the Alaska Native Corporations asking permission to use shareholder records in locating Class Members. Because of confidentiality issues, the corporations were unwilling to provide either Class Counsel or GCG access to those records but we understand they did send a notice of the settlement to shareholders, attached the WAU list for the respective corporation and identified both GCG and Class Counsel as contact points for the settlement. Both GCG and Class Counsel received a large volume of calls, emails and letters in response.
- Class Counsel David Smith returned to Anchorage on June 9-10, 2014, with GCG representatives, and held informational meetings and collected data at the Mid-Year Conference for the National Congress of American Indians ("NCAI") at which many representatives of the Alaska Regional Corporations and Alaska Native Villages attended. GCG set up a booth at the meeting where participants and the public could stop by to get their questions answered or provide updated contact information and records.

- In addition, Class Counsel reached out to leaders of each of the 229 federally recognized Alaska Native Villages, providing them all copies of the WAU list and asking that they notify Class Counsel or GCG in case an individual on the list was identified. In response, both Class Counsel and GCG, once again, received calls, emails and letters from Alaska Native Class Members.
- In addition, GCG contacted the Association of Village Council Presidents which agreed to help upon receipt of a formal request in writing. GCG provided this information as requested along with a list of WAU records for both living and deceased Class Members. GCG received responses from several native villages. GCG reviewed the information and updated its records or reached out directly to the individuals listed for further information.
- In addition, the Tanana Chiefs' Conference agreed to assist. GCG provided them with a list of WAU records for both living and deceased Class Members for the Doyon Region. GCG received responses from several native villages within the Doyon Region. GCG reviewed the information and updated its records or reached out directly to the individuals listed for further information.
- GCG contacted the Chugach Native Association to assist. However, no information was received by GCG directly from the Association.
- GCG contacted native villages within the Aleut Region for assistance with the Tribal Outreach Project, and received a positive response. GCG provided the villages with a list of WAU records for both living and deceased Class Members. On June 19, 2014, GCG

received a response to this list. GCG reviewed the information and updated its records or reached out directly to the individuals listed for further information.

 On December 31, 2013, GCG received address updates from the Ahtna Region for Class Members on the WAU list. GCG reviewed the information and updated its records or reached out directly to the individuals listed for further information.

22. Citizen Band Potawatomi Indian Tribe of Oklahoma

- GCG contacted the Tribe for assistance with the Tribal Outreach Project.
- On May 6, 2010, June 1, 2011, June 12, 2012, June 4, 2014 and June 3, 2015, David Smith presented updates on the Cobell Settlement at a symposium in Oklahoma City sponsored by the Oklahoma Supreme Court at which many Oklahoma tribal leaders, including Citizen Band Potawatomi leaders, were present. In 2013 and 2014, a representative of GCG was also present in order to distribute and receive information.

23. Red Lake Band of Chippewa Indians of the Red Lake Reservation

- On April 13, 2011, Class Counsel held an informational meeting at the Red
 Lake Reservation in Red Lake, Minnesota.
- Because of the number of Class Members who remained on the WAU list who were designated as Red Lake tribal members, on September 15, 2015, David Smith met with a representative of the enrollment office of the Red Lake Tribe. With Mr. Smith present, the representative was able to show how, using the Tribe's computer systems, she could identify the addresses for individuals on the WAU list. She requested and was provided by Class Counsel on September 17, 2015, a letter requesting that the Tribal Council allow access to enrollment records to help identify individuals on the WAU list. The Tribal Council

preferred that its own enrollment office perform this review and, since that date, Class Counsel has been working with the enrollment office on the list.

Mr. Smith contacted the Department of Justice and arranged for GCG to get
access to related records at the local BIA office in Bemidji Minnesota. In September 2015,
GCG representatives visited the BIA offices in Bemidji, Minnesota, to collect information
and documentation regarding living Class Members and the heirs of those that had passed.

24. Blackfeet Tribe of the Blackfeet Indian Reservation

- On March 20, 2010, Class Counsel held an informational meeting for members of the Blackfeet Tribe of the Blackfeet Reservation in Browning, Montana.
- On March 8, 2011, Class Counsel held a second informational meeting in Browning at which the settlement was discussed and information was distributed, including claim forms, to facilitate the identification of Class Members and heirs of those who had passed.
- On June 28, 2013, David Smith reached out to the General Counsel for the Blackfeet Tribe, and a paralegal in the Office of the General Counsel, and provided them a list of individuals on the WAU list who were identified as members of the Blackfeet Tribe. They were extremely helpful and provided information on those that were living and the heirs of those that were deceased based on the information they had on hand.
- Because of the number of Blackfeet tribal members who remained on the WAU list, on August 20, 2014, Bill Dorris and GCG representatives attended a third outreach meeting in Browning, Montana, to collect additional documentation, personally take questions, assist individuals in determining eligibility for the Settlement and the status

of any claim, and to identify living Class Members and heirs of eligible estates. GCG brought its computer record system which enabled its representatives to look up individual's class and payment status, take address updates and input relevant documents.

25. Prairie Band of Potawatomi Indians of Kansas

• GCG contacted the tribe for assistance with the Tribal Outreach Project, but GCG was unable to get additional information.

26. Confederated Salish & Kootenai Tribes of the Flathead Reservation

- On March 21, 2010, Class Counsel held an informational meeting at the Flathead Reservation in Pablo, Montana at which the settlement was discussed.
- On March 9, 2011, Class Counsel again held an informational meeting at the Flathead Reservation at which the settlement was discussed and information was distributed, including claim forms, to facilitate the identification of Class Members and heirs of those who had passed.
- In addition, GCG contacted the Tribe for assistance with the Tribal Outreach Project, and it agreed to assist. GCG provided the Tribe with a list of WAU records for both living and deceased Class Members. GCG received an extensive list in response with contact information for the individuals listed. Following receipt, GCG reviewed the information and updated its records or reached out directly to the individuals listed for further information.

27. Standing Rock Sioux Tribe of the Standing Rock Reservation

- On March 9, 2010, Class Counsel held an informational meeting at the Standing Rock Sioux Reservation in Fort Yates, North Dakota, at which the settlement was discussed.
- On February 26, 2011, Class Counsel again held an informational meeting at the Standing Rock Sioux Reservation at which the settlement was discussed and information was distributed, including claim forms, to facilitate the identification of Class Members and heirs of those who had passed.
- In addition, GCG contacted the Tribe for assistance with the Tribal Outreach Project.

28. Chickasaw Nation of Oklahoma

- On March 16, 2011, Class Counsel held an informational meeting at the Muscogee Creek Reservation within the exterior boundaries of the State of Oklahoma to which members of the Chickasaw Nation of Oklahoma were invited. Information on the settlement was distributed, including claim forms, to facilitate the identification of Class Members and heirs of those who had passed.
- In addition, GCG contacted the Tribe's CDIB/Enrollment Office for assistance with the Tribal Outreach Project, which agreed to assist. GCG provided the Tribe with a list of WAU records for both living and deceased Class Members. In January 2014, the list was published in the tribal paper. In March 2014, based on further outreach by GCG to the Tribe, GCG received additional information on 296 tribal members.
- On May 6, 2010, June 1, 2011, June 12, 2012, June 4, 2014 and June 3, 2015, David Smith presented updates on the Cobell Settlement at a symposium in Oklahoma City

sponsored by the Oklahoma Supreme Court at which many Oklahoma tribal leaders, including Chickasaw Nation leaders, were present. In 2013 and 2014, a representative of GCG was also present in order to distribute and receive information.

29. Santee Sioux Tribe of the Santee Reservation of Nebraska

- On March 11, 2010, Class Counsel held an informational meeting at the Santee Sioux Reservation in Niobrara, Nebraska, at which the settlement was discussed.
- On February 22, 2011, Class Counsel returned to Niobrara, Nebraska, and again held a meeting on the settlement at which information on the settlement was distributed, including claim forms, to facilitate the identification of Class Members and heirs of those who had passed.
- On June 24, 2015, David Smith returned to the Santee Sioux Reservation and met with a representative in the tribal enrollment office, who has been an excellent resource and extremely helpful. She was able to determine that the great majority of those remaining on the WAU list identified as living members of the Tribe were in fact deceased and provided addresses for those living where available. Both Mr. Smith and GCG have remained in contact with her, as a result of which a large number of individuals with no contact information and estates with no identifiable heirs have been paid.

30. Seminole Nation of Oklahoma

• GCG contacted the Tribe for assistance with the Tribal Outreach Project, and a representative at the tribal offices agreed to help upon receipt of a written request, which was provided. However, no information has been received from the Tribe.

• On May 6, 2010, June 1, 2011, June 12, 2012, June 4, 2014 and June 3, 2015, David Smith presented updates on the Cobell Settlement at a symposium in Oklahoma City sponsored by the Oklahoma Supreme Court at which many Oklahoma tribal leaders, including Seminole Nation leaders, were present. In 2013 and 2014, a representative of GCG was also present in order to distribute and receive information.

31. Bad River Band of the Lake Superior Tribe of Chippewa Indians of the Bad River Reservation

- On February 23, 2011, Class Counsel held a meeting at the Bad River Reservation in Ashland, Wisconsin, at which the settlement was discussed and information was distributed, including claim forms, to facilitate the identification of Class Members and heirs of those who had passed.
- In addition, GCG attempted to contact the Tribe for assistance, but has not received a response to its calls.

32. San Carlos Apache Tribe of the San Carlos Reservation of Arizona

- On March 17, 2010, Class Counsel held an informational meeting at the San Carlos Reservation in San Carlos, Arizona, at which the settlement was discussed.
- In addition, GCG spoke with ITCA which stated that it was willing to assist with locating Class Members who were members of San Carlos. GCG provided a list of WAU records for both living and deceased Class Members for the San Carlos Apache Tribe as requested.

- GCG also contacted the Tribe for assistance with the Tribal Outreach Project.

 Although the Tribe responded that it was unable to directly provide information, it agreed to contact those on the list of WAU living Class Members and potential heirs of eligible estates.
- Because of the large number of individuals identified as San Carlos tribal members who remained on the WAU list, in September and October 2015, David Smith reached out to the enrollment director at San Carlos to determine if the Tribe's enrollment records could be used to identify additional Class Members and their heirs. The director was very accommodating but ultimately determined, through the Tribe's Attorney General, that a request would have to be made in person to the Tribal Council. A meeting with the Tribal Council is scheduled for January 5, 2016.

33. Wisconsin Winnebago Indian Tribe of Wisconsin

• GCG contacted the Tribe for assistance with the Tribal Outreach Project.

However, no information was received by GCG directly from the Tribe.

34. Confederated Tribes of Colville Reservation

- On March 29, 2010, Class Counsel held an informational meeting at the Colville Reservation in Nespelem, Washington, at which the settlement was discussed.
- Class Counsel returned to the Colville Reservation on March 11, 2011 for a meeting with tribal members at which the settlement was discussed and information was distributed, including claim forms, to facilitate the identification of Class Members and heirs of those who had passed.
- In addition, GCG contacted the Tribe for assistance with the Tribal Outreach Project, and it agreed to assist. GCG provided a list of WAU records for both living and

deceased Class Members to Ms. Condon in the Enrollment Office. On December 6, 2013, GCG received an updated list in response. GCG reviewed the information and updated its records or reached out directly to the individuals listed for further information.

35. Fond du Lac Band

- On February 4, 2011, Class Counsel held an informational meeting with members of the Fond du Lac Band of the Lake Superior Chippewa within the exterior boundaries of the State of Minnesota at which the settlement was discussed and information was distributed, including claim forms, to facilitate the identification of Class Members and heirs of those who had passed.
- In addition, GCG reached out to the Tribe directly. On October 7, 2013, GCG provided the Tribe a list of individuals who were on the WAU list and identified as tribal members, requesting address information and the identification of heirs for those who had passed. An updated list was sent to the enrollment office for the Tribe on January 9, 2014.
- On April 7, 2014, GCG reached out to the General Counsel for the Tribe, requesting the Tribe's assistance in locating individuals remaining on the list. The Tribe agreed to send letters to individuals on the list. On May 5, 2014, a sample letter was provided by GCG to use in outreach to these tribal members and the general counsel confirmed the letters were sent to tribal members in correspondence dated December 18, 2014.
- David Smith contacted the Department of Justice and arranged for GCG to get access to Tribal records at the local BIA office in Bemidji, Minnesota. In September 2015, GCG representatives visited the BIA offices in Bemidji, Minnesota, to collect information

and documentation regarding living Class Members of the Fond du Lac Band and the heirs of those who had passed.

• In addition, Mr. Smith made arrangements to review tribal enrollment records of the Fond du Lac Band with the Great Lakes Inter-Tribal Council. These were reviewed by Mr. Smith and a representative from GCG at the offices of the Great Lakes Inter-Tribal Council in Cass Lake, Minnesota, on September 23-24, 2015 and again on October 19-22, 2015.

36. White Mountain Apache Tribe of the Fort Apache Indian Reservation

- On March 17, 2010, Class Counsel held an informational meeting at the Fort Apache Indian Reservation within the exterior boundaries of the State of Arizona at which the settlement was discussed.
- Class Counsel returned to the Fort Apache Reservation on February 14, 2011, for a meeting with tribal members at which the settlement was discussed and information was distributed, including claim forms, to facilitate the identification of Class Members and heirs of those who had passed.
- In addition, GCG spoke with ITCA which was willing to assist with locating class members who were members of the White Mountain Apache Tribe. GCG provided a list of WAU records for both living and deceased Class Members for the Tribe as requested.
- GCG contacted the Tribe directly for assistance with the Tribal Outreach Project, and it agreed to assist. GCG provided the Tribe with a list of WAU records for both living and deceased Class Members. Additionally, the Tribe published an announcement

regarding the Cobell WAU list and a direct line to a GCG representative so that Class Members and potential heirs could contact them directly.

37. Lac Courte Oreilles Band of Lake Superior Chippewa Indians of the Lac Courte Oreilles Reservation of Wisconsin

- On February 3, 2011, Class Counsel attended a meeting at the Lac Courte
 Oreilles Reservation at which the settlement was discussed and information was distributed,
 including claim forms, to facilitate the identification of Class Members and heirs of those
 who had passed.
- In addition, GCG contacted the Tribe for assistance with the Tribal Outreach Project, and it agreed to assist. GCG provided The Tribe with a list of WAU records for both living and deceased Class Members. GCG received an updated list in response. GCG reviewed the information and updated its records or reached out directly to the individuals listed for further information.

38. Chevenne-Arapahoe Tribes of Oklahoma

- On March 14, 2011, Class Counsel invited members of the Cheyenne-Arapahoe Tribe to attend a meeting in Anadarko, Oklahoma, at which the settlement was discussed and information was distributed, including claim forms, to facilitate the identification of Class Members and heirs of those who had passed.
- In addition, GCG contacted the Tribe directly for assistance with the Tribal Outreach Project, and it agreed to assist. GCG provided the Tribe with a list of WAU records for both living and deceased Class Members. GCG received an updated list in response.

GCG reviewed the information and updated its records or reached out directly to the individuals listed for further information.

- Because of the number of individuals identified by Interior as Cheyenne-Arapahoe Tribal members who remained on the list, on June 2, 2014, another meeting was held in Anadarko at which Class Counsel David Smith and representatives of GCG were present and members of the Cheyenne-Arapahoe Tribe attended. The status of the settlement was discussed and information was distributed to facilitate the identification of Class Members and heirs of those who had passed.
- In addition, On May 6, 2010, June 1, 2011, June 12, 2012, June 4, 2014 and June 3, 2015, David Smith presented updates on the Cobell Settlement at a symposium in Oklahoma City sponsored by the Oklahoma Supreme Court at which many Oklahoma tribal leaders, including Cheyenne-Arapahoe leaders, were present. In 2013 and 2014, a representative of GCG was also present in order to distribute and receive information.

39. Salt River Pima-Maricopa Indian Community of the Salt River Reservation

• On August 7, 2013, David Smith reached out to the Director of the Community Development Department for the Salt River Pima-Maricopa Indian Community ("SRPMIC") regarding assisting in the location of those identified by Interior as members of the Community on the WAU list. She agreed to help and was provided the WAU list for the Tribe.

- GCG spoke with the ITCA which stated it was willing to assist with locating class members who were SRPMIC tribal members. ITCA requested and was provided a list of WAU records for both living and deceased Class Members for the SRPMIC as requested.
- GCG contacted the tribe directly for assistance with the Tribal Outreach Project, and the Tribe agreed to assist. GCG provided the Tribe with a list of WAU records for both living and deceased Class Members. On March 29, 2014 and April 21, 2014, GCG received an updated list in response. GCG reviewed the information and updated its records or reached out directly to the individuals listed for further information.
- Because of the large number of Salt River tribal members that remain on the WAU list, GCG will be reviewing BIA Pima Agency records relating to Salt River WAU tribal members on January 19-22, 2016.

40. Keweenaw Bay Indian Community of L'Anse, Lac Vieux Desert & Ontonagon Bands of Chippewa Indians of the L'Anse

- On April 11, 2011, Class Counsel invited members of the Keweenaw Bay Indian Community to attend a meeting at which the settlement was discussed and information was distributed, including claim forms, to facilitate the identification of Class Members and heirs of those who had passed.
- In addition, GCG contacted the Tribe for assistance with the Tribal Outreach Project, and the Tribe agreed to assist. GCG provided a list of WAU records for both living and deceased Class Members to the Enrollment/Motor Vehicle Director for the Keweenaw Bay Indian Community. GCG received an updated list in response. GCG reviewed the

information and updated its records or reached out directly to the individuals listed for further information.

• On December 7-11, 2015, GCG also visited the Sault Ste. Marie regional office of the BIA in order to review the local records and probates in its office for the Keweenaw Bay Indian Community. This was a very successful visit as GCG was able to obtain over 75% of all living WAU Class Members' updated contact information, and deceased Class Member records were updated with new contact information for their heirs or was provided with a probate order for which GCG will be able to distribute the estate award.

41. Cheyenne River Sioux Tribe of the Cheyenne River Reservation

- GCG contacted the Tribe for assistance with the Tribal Outreach Project, and the Tribe agreed to assist. GCG provided a list of WAU records for both living and deceased Class Members to the Chairman of the Cheyenne River Sioux Tribe.
- In addition, on July 9, 2014, Class Counsel and GCG representatives attended an outreach meeting at the Cheyenne River Sioux Cultural Center to collect information and documentation regarding living Class Members and the heirs of those who had passed.

42. **Ponca Tribe of Indians of Oklahoma**

- On October 1, 2013, Class Counsel contacted the Ponca Tribe for assistance with outreach and on October 4, 2013, provided it the WAU records for living and deceased members of the Tribe.
- Because of the significant number of Ponca tribal members who remained on the WAU list, on June 4, 2015, David Smith met with a Council member and enrollment director of the Tribe to assist with identification of remaining tribal members.

• In addition, in July 2014, GCG held a meeting at the Tribe to assist in the identification of tribal members or heirs. GCG answered Class Member questions and updated contact information for the WAU Class Members. GCG also met with families of deceased Class Members and obtained documents regarding the heirs to the estate as well as provided direction for those families that did not know what they needed to do to have the estate award distributed.

43. Arapahoe Tribe of the Wind River Reservation

- On March 31, 2010, Class Counsel held an informational meeting at the Wind River Reservation regarding the settlement.
- In addition, GCG sent a list of WAU records for both living and deceased Class Members to the Associate Director of the Lander Area Chamber of Commerce. GCG also sent a list to the Records Clerk for the Eastern Shoshone Enrollment Office. On March 28, 2014, GCG received an updated list back from the Arapahoe Tribe of the Wind River Reservation. GCG reviewed the information and updated its records or reached out directly to the individuals listed for further information.

44. Devils Lake Sioux Tribe of the Devils Lake Sioux Reservation

• GCG contacted the tribe for assistance with the Tribal Outreach Project, and the Tribe agreed to assist. GCG provided the Tribe with a list of WAU records for both living and deceased Class Members. On May 14, 2014, GCG received an updated list in response. GCG reviewed the information and updated its records or reached out directly to the individuals listed for further information.

45. Red Cliff Band of Lake Superior Chippewa Indians of Wisconsin

• GCG contacted the Tribe for assistance with the Tribal Outreach Project, and the Tribe agreed to assist. GCG provided the Tribe with a list of WAU records for both living and deceased Class Members. Additionally, the Tribe published an announcement regarding the Cobell WAU list and a direct line to a GCG representative so that Class Members and potential heirs could contact GCG directly.

46. Three Affiliated Tribes of the Fort Berthold Reservation

- On May 19, 2010, Class Counsel held an informational meeting regarding the settlement at the Fort Berthold Reservation.
- On February 16, 2011, Class Counsel held a second meeting at Fort Berthold at which the settlement was discussed and information was distributed, including claim forms, to facilitate the identification of Class Members and heirs of those who had passed.
- GCG contacted the Tribe for assistance with the Tribal Outreach Project, and the Tribe agreed to assist. GCG provided the Tribe with a list of WAU records for both living and deceased Class Members.
- GCG received over 300 pages of contact information back, which GCG converted to spreadsheet format to facilitate more efficient review. GCG reviewed the information and updated its records or reached out directly to the individuals listed for further information.
- On June 27, 2014, Class Counsel and GCG representatives attended an outreach meeting at the 4 Bears Casino & Lodge at Fort Berthold to collect documentation, personally take questions, assist individuals in determining eligibility for the Settlement and the status of any claim, and to identify living Class Members and heirs to eligible estates.

• On June 22, 2015, David Smith returned to the Fort Berthold Reservation to review with the enrollment office the remaining individuals on the WAU list. The enrollment office immediately responded with an updated list.

47. **Pawnee Indian Tribe of Oklahoma**

- On June 4, 2015, David Smith met with members of the Tribe on the Pawnee Reservation to review the WAU list for the Tribe and to discuss ways in which additional individuals could be identified. The Tribe agreed to assist.
- In addition, on July 4, 2015, GCG representatives attended a tribal PowWow to collect documentation, personally take questions, assist individuals in determining eligibility for the Settlement and the status of any claim, and to identify living Class Members and heirs to eligible estates.
- Additionally, a representative in the tribe's offices has been in direct contact with GCG regarding providing confirmation of tribal members' identity and potential eligibility.

48. Hoopa Valley Tribe of the Hoopa Valley Reservation

- On April 13, 2011, Class Counsel held a meeting at the Hoopa Valley Reservation at which the settlement was discussed and information was distributed, including claim forms, to facilitate the identification of Class Members and heirs of those who had passed.
- In addition, GCG contacted the tribe for assistance with the Tribal Outreach Project, and the Tribe agreed to assist. A representative of the Two Rivers Tribute in Hoopa, California (only Native American owned newspaper in California) agreed to publish a list of

WAU records for both living and deceased Class Members from the Yurok, Hoopa Valley and Karuk tribes.

49. Shoshone Tribe of the Wind River Reservation

- On March 31, 2010, Class Counsel held an informational meeting at the Wind River Reservation regarding the settlement.
- In addition, GCG sent a list of WAU records for both living and deceased Class Members to the Associate Director of the Lander Area Chamber of Commerce. GCG also sent a list to the Records Clerk for the Eastern Shoshone Enrollment Office.

50. Omaha Tribe of Nebraska

On June 23, 2015, David Smith met with members of the Council for the
 Omaha Tribe, requesting their assistance in identifying tribal members on the WAU list.
 Copies of the list were provided. They were extremely supportive and shortly after that
 meeting Class Counsel and GCG began to receive a large volume of calls from Omaha Tribal
 members regarding eligibility.

51. Absentee-Shawnee Tribe of Indians of Oklahoma

- GCG contacted the Tribe for assistance with the Tribal Outreach Project, and it agreed to assist by providing information for living and deceased WAU Class Members.
- In addition, on June 2, 2014, a meeting was held in Anadarko at which David Smith and representatives of GCG were present and members of the Absentee Shawnee Tribe attended. The status of the settlement was discussed and information was distributed to facilitate the identification of Class Members and heirs of those who had passed.

• In addition, On May 6, 2010, June 1, 2011, June 12, 2012, June 4, 2014 and June 3, 2015, David Smith presented updates on the Cobell Settlement at a symposium in Oklahoma City sponsored by the Oklahoma Supreme Court at which many Oklahoma tribal leaders, including Absentee Shawnee leaders, were present. In 2013 and 2014, a representative of GCG was also present in order to distribute and receive information.

52. Yurok Tribe of the Hoopa Valley Reservation

- On April 13, 2011, Class Counsel held a meeting with the Yurok Tribe at which the settlement was discussed and information was distributed, including claim forms, to facilitate the identification of Class Members and heirs of those who had passed.
- GCG contacted the Tribe for assistance with the Tribal Outreach Project, and it agreed to help. A representative of Two Rivers Tribute in Hoopa, California (only Native American owned newspaper in California) agreed to publish a list of living and deceased WAU Class Members from the Yurok, Hoopa Valley and Karuk tribes.

53. **Nez Perce Tribe of Idaho**

- On March 29, 2010, Class Counsel held a meeting at the Nez Perce Reservation at which the settlement was discussed.
- On March 10, 2011, Class Counsel held a second meeting at the Reservation at which the settlement was discussed and information was distributed, including claim forms, to facilitate the identification of Class Members and heirs of those who had passed.
- In addition, GCG contacted the tribe for assistance with the Tribal Outreach Project, and the Tribe agreed to assist. GCG provided the Tribe with a list of WAU records for both living and deceased Class Members. On February 26, 2014, GCG received an

updated list in response. GCG reviewed the information and updated its records or reached out directly to the individuals listed for further information.

54. Ute Indian Tribe of the Uintah & Ouray Reservation

- On March 21, 2011, Class Counsel held a meeting at the Uintah and Ouray Reservation at which the settlement was discussed and information was distributed, including claim forms, to facilitate the identification of Class Members and heirs of those who had passed.
- In addition, GCG contacted the Tribe for assistance with the Tribal Outreach Project. GCG provided a list of WAU records for both living and deceased Class Members for that Tribe to the Enrollment Department of the Ute Indian Tribe of the Uintah & Ouray Reservation.

55. Crow Tribe of Montana

- On March 29, 2010, Class Counsel held an informational meeting regarding the settlement at the Crow Reservation.
- On March 24, 2011, Class Counsel held a second meeting at the Reservation at which the settlement was discussed and information was distributed, including claim forms, to facilitate the identification of Class Members and heirs of those who had passed.
- In addition, GCG contacted the Tribe for assistance with the Tribal Outreach Project.

56. Mille Lacs Reservation

• GCG contacted the Tribe for assistance with the Tribal Outreach Project, and the Tribe agreed to assist. GCG provided the Tribe with a list of WAU records for both living

and deceased Class Members. On April 21, 2014, GCG received an updated list in response. GCG reviewed the information and updated its records or reached out directly to the individuals listed for further information.

• In addition, David Smith made arrangements to review tribal enrollment records of the Mille Lacs Band with the Great Lakes Inter-Tribal Council. These were reviewed by Mr. Smith and a representative from GCG at the offices of the Great Lakes Inter-Tribal Council in Cass Lake, Minnesota, on September 23-24, 2015 and again on October 19-22, 2015.

57. Fort Belknap Indian Community of the Fort Belknap Reservation of Montana

- On March 23, 2010, Class Counsel held an informational meeting at Fort Belknap at which the settlement was discussed.
- On February 18, 2011, Class Counsel held a second meeting at the Reservation at which the settlement was discussed and information was distributed, including claim forms, to facilitate the identification of Class Members and heirs of those who had passed.
- In addition, on August 1, 2014, Class Counsel and GCG representatives attended an outreach meeting at the Fort Belknap Indian Community to collect documentation, personally take questions, assist individuals in determining eligibility for the Settlement, the status of any claim, and identify living Class Members and heirs to eligible estates.

58. Winnebago Tribe of the Winnebago Reservation of Nebraska

- GCG contacted the Tribe for assistance with the Tribal Outreach Project, and it agreed to assist. GCG provided the Tribe with a list of WAU records for both living and deceased Class Members. On March 27, 2014, GCG received an updated list in response. GCG reviewed the information and updated its records or reached out directly to the individuals listed for further information.
- On June 24, 2015, David Smith visited to the Winnebago Reservation to meet with the enrollment office to help identify additional remaining individuals on the WAU list.

59. Otoe-Missouri Tribe of Oklahoma

- On June 4, 2014, David Smith and GCG representatives attended an outreach meeting at the Otoe-Missouria Community Building to collect documentation, personally take questions, assist individuals in determining eligibility for the Settlement and the status of any claim, and identify living Class Members and heirs to eligible estates.
- The enrollment office at Otoe-Missoria has been very helpful in identifying tribal members on the WAU list.

60. Kickapoo Tribe of Oklahoma (Includes Texas Band of Kickapoo Indians)

• GCG contacted the Tribe for assistance with the Tribal Outreach Project, and it agreed to assist. GCG provided the Tribe with a list of WAU records for both living and deceased Class Members. On April 10, 2014, GCG received an updated list in response. GCG reviewed the information and updated its records or reached out directly to the individuals listed for further information.

• Additionally, members of the Tribe's enrollment office have been in direct contact with GCG regarding both living class members and estates, and GCG has successfully identified and paid a large number of these records with their assistance.

61. **Shoshone-Bannock of Fort Hall**

- On April 1, 2010, Class Counsel attended an informational meeting at Fort Hall to discuss the settlement.
- In addition, GCG contacted the Tribe for assistance with the Tribal Outreach Project, and it agreed to assist. GCG provided the Tribe with a list of WAU records for both living and deceased Class Members. In December, 2013, GCG received an updated list in response. GCG reviewed the information and updated its records or reached out directly to the individuals listed for further information.

62. Eastern Shawnee Tribe of Oklahoma

• GCG contacted the Tribe for assistance with the Tribal Outreach Project, and it agreed to assist. GCG provided the Tribe with a list of WAU records for both living and deceased Class Members. GCG received a partially updated list in response. GCG reviewed the information and updated its records or reached out directly to the individuals listed for further information.

63. Seneca Nation of New York

• GCG contacted the Tribe for assistance with the Tribal Outreach Project.

64. Confederated Tribes of the Umatilla Reservation

- On October 8, 2015, Class Counsel and GCG representatives attended a conference at the Wildhorse Resort and Casino in Pendleton, Oregon to answer questions from Class Members and potential heirs.
- On that same date Class Counsel met with a representative in the enrollment office at Umatilla who was very helpful and willing to provide additional information regarding tribal members remaining on the WAU list.

65. **Bois Forte Band (Nett Lake)**

- GCG contacted the Tribe for assistance with the Tribal Outreach Project, and it agreed to assist. GCG provided the Tribe with a list of WAU records for both living and deceased Class Members. On March 14, 2014, GCG received an updated list in response. GCG reviewed the information and updated its records or reached out directly to the individuals listed for further information.
- In addition, David Smith made arrangements to review tribal enrollment records of the Bois Forte Band with the Great Lakes Inter-Tribal Council. These were reviewed by Mr. Smith and a representative from GCG at the offices of the Great Lakes Inter-Tribal Council in Cass Lake, Minnesota, on September 23-24, 2015 and again on October 19-22, 2015.

66. Iowa Tribe of Kansas & Nebraska

• GCG contacted the Tribe for assistance with the Tribal Outreach Project, and it agreed to assist. GCG provided the Tribe with a list of WAU records for both living and deceased Class Members. GCG received an updated list in response. GCG reviewed the

information and updated its records or reached out directly to the individuals listed for further information.

67. Quechan Tribe of Fort Yuma of California & Utah

• GCG contacted the Tribe for assistance with the Tribal Outreach Project. It agreed to contact those on the list of WAU living Class Members and potential heirs of eligible estates. GCG provided a list to the Tribe in April 2014. Subsequent to providing the list, GCG received information on 40 tribal members.

68. **Delaware Tribe of Western Oklahoma**

• GCG contacted the Tribe for assistance with the Tribal Outreach Project, and it agreed to assist by providing information for living and deceased WAU Class Members. GCG received a list in from the Tribe on April 23, 2014, which GCG reviewed and updated its records based on this information.

69. Crow Creek Sioux Tribe of the Crow Creek Reservation

• GCG contacted the Tribe for assistance with the Tribal Outreach Project. A list of WAU records for both living and deceased Class members was sent in January 2014.

70. Menominee Indian Tribe of Wisconsin

• GCG contacted the Tribe for assistance with the Tribal Outreach Project, and it agreed to assist. GCG provided a list of WAU records for both living and deceased Class Members to Ms. Duncane, Director of Enrollment at the Menominee Enrollment Office. GCG received an updated list in response. GCG reviewed the information and updated its records or reached out directly to the individuals listed for further information.

71. Confederated Tribes of the Warm Springs Reservation of Oregon

- GCG contacted the Tribe for assistance with the Tribal Outreach Project, and it agreed to assist. GCG provided the Tribe with a list of WAU records for both living and deceased Class Members. On January 13, 2014, GCG received an updated list in response. Additional data was received on February 12, 2014 and March 14, 2014. GCG reviewed the information and updated its records or reached out directly to the individuals listed for further information.
- GCG has also regularly worked with the tribe's probate offices to obtain distribution documents for eligible estates.

72. Walker River Paiute Tribe of the Walker River Reservation

• GCG contacted the Tribe for assistance with the Tribal Outreach Project. The Tribe expressed interest in assisting with outreach. A list of WAU records for both living and deceased Class Members was sent on October 24, 2013.

73. **Pueblo of Laguna**

• On October 4, 2013, Class Counsel reached out to the Secretary of the Pueblo of Laguna and requested the Pueblo's assistance in identifying Class Members who were tribal members. He agreed to assist and was provided a list of WAU records for both living and deceased Class Members. The Pueblo provided an updated list in response. GCG reviewed the information and updated its records or reached out directly to the individuals listed for further information.

74. Chippewa-Cree Indians of the Rocky Boys Reservation

• GCG contacted the Tribe for assistance with the Tribal Outreach Project, and it agreed to assist. GCG provided the Tribe with a list of WAU records for both living and

deceased Class Members. On April 14, 2014, GCG received an updated list in response and a subsequent update on June 4, 2014. GCG reviewed the information and updated its records or reached out directly to the individuals listed for further information.

75. Tulalip Tribes of the Tulalip Reservation

- On December 23, 2013, GCG provided the Tribe with a list of WAU records for both living and deceased Class Members.
- On November 6-7, 2014, David Smith and a representative of GCG attended a meeting of tribal enrollment officers at the Tulalip Reservation. The meeting focused on the WAU and undistributed estates for tribes represented at the meeting.

76. Stockbridge-Munsee Community of Mohican Indians of Wisconsin

• GCG contacted the Tribe for assistance with the Tribal Outreach Project, and it agreed to assist. GCG provided the Tribe with a list of WAU records for both living and deceased Class Members. On June 18, 2014, GCG received an updated list in response. GCG reviewed the information and updated its records or reached out directly to the individuals listed for further information.

77. Washoe Indians of Nevada & California

• GCG contacted the Tribe for assistance with the Tribal Outreach Project. On February 6, 2014, a list of WAU records for both living and deceased Class Members was provided to a tribal representative.

78. Covelo Indian Community of the Round Valley Reservation

• GCG contacted the Tribe for assistance with the Tribal Outreach Project, and it agreed to assist. GCG provided the Tribe with a list of WAU records for both living and

deceased Class Members. On April 3, 2014, GCG received an updated list in response. GCG reviewed the information and updated its records or reached out directly to the individuals listed for further information.

79. **Pueblo of Taos**

• GCG contacted the Tribe for assistance with the Tribal Outreach Project, and it agreed to assist. GCG provided the Tribe with a list of WAU records for both living and deceased Class Members. On March 7, 2014, GCG received an updated list in response. GCG reviewed the information and updated its records or reached out directly to the individuals listed for further information.

80. Wyandotte Tribe of Oklahoma

• GCG contacted the Tribe for assistance with the Tribal Outreach Project, and it agreed to assist. GCG provided the Tribe with a list of WAU records for both living and deceased Class Members. On May 14, 2014, GCG received an updated list in response. GCG reviewed the information and updated its records or reached out directly to the individuals listed for further information.

81. Wichita Indian Tribe of Oklahoma

- On March 14, 2011, Class Counsel held a presentation in Anadarko, Oklahoma, to which members of the Wichita Tribe were invited to attend. The settlement was discussed and information was distributed, including claim forms, to facilitate the identification of Class Members and heirs of those who had passed.
- GCG contacted the Wichita Tribe of Oklahoma for assistance with the Tribal Outreach Project, and it agreed to assist. GCG provided the Tribe with a paper list of WAU

records for both living and deceased Class Members. On May 19, 2014, GCG received an updated list in response. GCG reviewed the information, updated its records, and reached out directly to the individuals listed for further information. Additionally, the Tribe also agreed to directly contact Class Members.

• On May 21, 2014, Class Counsel David Smith talked to the President of the Tribe and requested her assistance in notifying tribal members of a meeting regarding the settlement in Anadarko on June 2, 2014. On that date, David Smith and GCG representatives attended an outreach meeting at the Iscani Community Center to collect documentation, personally take questions, assist individuals in determining eligibility for the Settlement and the status of any claim, and to identify living Class Members and the heirs of those who have passed.

82. Pala Band of Luiseno Mission Indians of the Pala Reservation

• GCG contacted the Tribe for assistance with the Tribal Outreach Project, and it agreed to assist. GCG provided the Tribe with a list of WAU records for both living and deceased Class Members. On October 15, 2014, GCG received an updated list in response. GCG reviewed the information and updated its records or reached out directly to the individuals listed for further information.

83. Lummi Tribe of the Lummi Reservation

• GCG contacted the Tribe for assistance with the Tribal Outreach Project, and it agreed to assist. GCG provided the tribe with a list of WAU records for both living and deceased Class Members. On January 3, 2014, GCG received an updated list in response, and

a subsequent update on March 6, 2014. GCG reviewed the information and updated its records or reached out directly to the individuals listed for further information.

84. Hannahville Indian Community of Wisconsin Potawatomie Indians of Michigan

- GCG contacted the Tribe for assistance with the Tribal Outreach Project, and it agreed to assist. GCG provided a list of WAU records for both living and deceased Class Members to the tribal offices.
- On December 7-11, 2015, GCG visited the Sault Ste. Marie regional office of the BIA in order to review the records in its office. This was a very successful visit as GCG was able to obtain over 75% of all living WAU Class Members' updated contact information, and deceased Class Member records were updated with new contact information for their heirs or was provided with a probate order for which GCG will be able to distribute the estate award.

85. St. Croix Chippewa Indians of Wisconsin

• GCG contacted the Tribe for assistance with the Tribal Outreach Project, and it agreed to assist. GCG provided the Tribe with a list of WAU records for both living and deceased Class Members. On April 9, 2014, GCG received an updated list in response. GCG reviewed the information and updated its records or reached out directly to the individuals listed for further information.

86. Karuk Tribe of California

• GCG contacted the Tribe for assistance with the Tribal Outreach Project, and it agreed to assist. GCG provided the Tribe with a list of WAU records for both living and

deceased Class Members. Additionally, the Two Rivers Tribute in Hoopa, California (only Native American owned newspaper in California) agreed to publish a list of living and deceased WAU Class Members from the Yurok, Hoopa Valley and Karuk tribes.

87. **Hopi Tribe of Arizona**

• GCG spoke with ITCA which was willing to assist with locating class members who were members of the Hope Tribe. GCG provided a list of WAU records for both living and deceased Class Members for each Tribe as requested.

88. Hualapai Tribe of the Hualapai Indian Reservation

- GCG spoke with ITCA which was willing to assist with locating class members who were Hualapai tribal members. GCG provided a list of WAU records for both living and deceased Class Members for each tribe as requested.
 - GCG also contacted the Tribe for assistance with the Tribal Outreach Project.

89. Keweenaw Bay Chippewa

- GCG contacted the Tribe for assistance with the Tribal Outreach Project, and it agreed to assist. GCG provided the Tribe with a list of WAU records for both living and deceased Class Members. GCG received an updated list in response. GCG reviewed the information and updated its records or reached out directly to the individuals listed for further information.
- On December 7-11, 2015, GCG visited the Sault Ste. Marie regional office of the BIA in order to review the records they had in their office. This was a very successful visit as GCG was able to obtain over 75% of all living WAU Class Members' updated contact information, and deceased Class Member records were updated with new contact

information for their heirs or was provided with a probate order for which GCG will be able to distribute the estate award.

90. Fort McDowell Mohave-Apache Indian Community, Fort McDowell Band of Mohave Apache Indians of the Fort McDowell

- GCG spoke with ITCA which was willing to assist with locating class members who were members of the Community. GCG provided a list of WAU records for both living and deceased Class Members for each tribe as requested.
- Also, the tribal offices expressed interest in assisting with outreach and information was provided.

91. Mescalero Apache Tribe of the Mescalero Reservation

• GCG contacted the Tribe for assistance with the Tribal Outreach Project, and it agreed to assist. GCG provided the Tribe with a list of WAU records for both living and deceased Class Members. On April 21, 2014, GCG received an updated list in response. GCG reviewed the information and updated its records or reached out directly to the individuals listed for further information.

92. Makah Indian Tribe of the Makah Indian Reservation

• GCG contacted the Tribe for assistance with the Tribal Outreach Project. Although the Tribe responded that it was unable to directly provide information, it agreed to contact those on the list of WAU living Class Members and potential heirs of eligible estates. GCG sent a list to the tribe in April 2014. GCG has received calls from Class Members who were subsequently contacted by the tribe.

93. Morongo Band of Cahuilla Mission Indians of the Morongo Reservation

• GCG contacted the Tribe for assistance with the Tribal Outreach Project, and the tribal office agreed to review the list of living and deceased WAU Class Members and update whatever contacts she could. Subsequent to providing this list, GCG received information on 14 tribal members.

94. **Ponca Tribe of Nebraska**

GCG contacted the tribe for assistance with the Tribal Outreach Project, and it
agreed to assist. GCG provided the Tribe with a list of WAU records for both living and
deceased Class Members.

95. Kickapoo Tribe of Indians of the Kickapoo Reservation in Kansas

• GCG contacted the Tribe for assistance with the Tribal Outreach Project, and it agreed to assist. GCG provided the Tribe with a list of WAU records for both living and deceased Class Members. On April 30, 2014, GCG received an updated list in response and an additional update on May 2, 2014. GCG reviewed the information and updated its records or reached out directly to the individuals listed for further information.

96. Swinomish Indians of the Swinomish Reservation

• GCG contacted the Tribe for assistance with the Tribal Outreach Project. Although the Tribe responded that it was unable to directly provide information, it agreed to contact those on the list of WAU living Class Members and potential heirs of eligible estates. GCG provided a list to the Tribe in November 2013.

97. Fort Mojave Indian Tribe of Arizona

• GCG spoke with ITCA which was willing to assist with locating class members who were members of the Fort Mojave Tribe. GCG provided a list of WAU records

for both living and deceased Class Members for each tribe as requested. Subsequent to providing this list, GCG received information on 27 tribal members.

98. **Zuni Tribe of the Zuni Reservation**

- GCG spoke with ITCA which was willing to assist with locating Class Members who were Zuni tribal members. GCG provided a list of WAU records for both living and deceased Class Members for each Tribe as requested.
- GCG contacted the Tribe for assistance with the Tribal Outreach Project, and it agreed to assist. GCG provided the Tribe with a list of WAU records for both living and deceased Class Members. On May 6, 2014, GCG received an updated list in response. GCG reviewed the information and updated its records or reached out directly to the individuals listed for further information.

99. **Puyallup Tribe of the Puyallup Reservation**

• On October 1, 2013, David Smith reached out to the Tribe's offices requesting assistance in identifying tribal members listed on the WAU list and the heirs of those that were deceased. On October 8, 2013, The Tribe responded and agreed to assist upon approval of the Tribal Council, which was granted. GCG provided a physical list of WAU records for both living and deceased Class Members to the Director of Enrollment Department on October 2, 2013. The Director was very helpful and, in response, provided a list of addresses for living Class Members and information regarding estates and heirs for deceased Class Members. GCG reviewed the information and updated its records or reached out directly to the individuals listed for further information.

• On September 23, 2014, GCG representatives attended an outreach meeting in Tacoma, Washington attended by tribal members to collect documentation, personally take questions, assist individuals in determining eligibility for the Settlement and the status of any claim, and to identify living Class Members and heirs to eligible estates.

100. Flandreau Santee Sioux Tribe of South Dakota

• GCG contacted the Tribe for assistance with the Tribal Outreach Project, and it agreed to assist. GCG provided the Tribe with a list of WAU records for both living and deceased Class Members. On May 12, 2014, GCG received an updated list in response. GCG reviewed the information and updated its records or reached out directly to the individuals listed for further information.

101. Kaibab Band of Paiute Indians of the Kaibab Indian Reservation

• GCG spoke with ITCA which was willing to assist with locating class members who were members of Tribes that were Council members. GCG provided a list of WAU records for both living and deceased Class Members for each Tribe as requested. Subsequent to providing this list, GCG received information on two tribal members.

102. Prairie Island Indiana Community of Minnesota Mdewakanton Sioux Indians of the Prairie Island Reservation

• GCG contacted the Tribe for assistance with the Tribal Outreach Project.

103. Rincon Band of Luiseno Mission Indians of the Rincon Reservation

• GCG contacted the Tribe for assistance with the Tribal Outreach Project, and it agreed to assist. GCG provided the Tribe with a list of WAU records for both living and deceased Class Members. On May 7, 2014, GCG received an updated list in response. GCG

reviewed the information and updated its records or reached out directly to the individuals listed for further information.

104. Chemehuevi Indian Tribe of the Chemehuevi Reservation

• GCG spoke with ITCA which was willing to assist with locating class members who were Chemehuevi tribal members. GCG provided a list of WAU records for both living and deceased Class Members for each Tribe as requested. Subsequent to providing this list, GCG received information on 17 tribal members.

105. Forest County Potawatomi Community of Wisconsin Potawatomi Indians

• GCG contacted the Tribe for assistance with the Tribal Outreach Project, and it agreed to assist. GCG provided the Tribe with a list of WAU records for both living and deceased Class Members. On April 16, 2014, GCG received an updated list in response. GCG reviewed the information and updated its records or reached out directly to the individuals listed for further information.

106. Shoshone-Paiute Tribes of the Duck Valley Rancheria

• GCG contacted the Tribe for assistance with the Tribal Outreach Project, and it agreed to assist. GCG provided the Tribe with a list of WAU records for both living and deceased Class Members. On June 18, 2014, GCG received an updated list in response. GCG reviewed the information and updated its records or reached out directly to the individuals listed for further information.

107. Nooksack Indian Tribe of Washington

• GCG contacted the Tribe for assistance with the Tribal Outreach Project and provided a list of WAU records for both living and deceased Class Members.

108. Confederated Tribes of the Goshute Reservation

• GCG contacted the Tribe for assistance with the Tribal Outreach Project and provided a list of WAU records for both living and deceased Class Members.

109. **Cowlitz Indian Tribe**

• GCG contacted the Tribe for assistance with the Tribal Outreach Project, and it agreed to assist. GCG provided the Tribe with a list of WAU records for both living and deceased Class Members. On April 16, 2014 and April 18, 2014, GCG received an updated list in response. GCG reviewed the information and updated its records or reached out directly to the individuals listed for further information.

110. Lower Sioux Indian Community of the Minnesota Mdewakanton Sioux Indians of the Lower Sioux Reservation

• GCG contacted the Tribe for assistance with the Tribal Outreach Project, and it agreed to assist. GCG provided the Tribe with a list of WAU records for both living and deceased Class Members. On February 10, 2014, GCG received an updated list in response and additional information on March 14, 2014. GCG reviewed the information and updated its records or reached out directly to the individuals listed for further information.

111. Te-Moak West Shoshone (Elko)

• GCG contacted the Tribe for assistance with the Tribal Outreach Project, and it agreed to assist. GCG provided the Tribe with a list of WAU records for both living and deceased Class Members. On March 5, 2014, GCG received an updated list in response. GCG reviewed the information and updated its records or reached out directly to the individuals listed for further information.

112. Iowa Tribe of Oklahoma

• GCG contacted the Tribe for assistance with the Tribal Outreach Project, and it agreed to assist. GCG provided the Tribe with a list of WAU records for both living and deceased Class Members. GCG received an updated list in response. GCG reviewed the information and updated its records or reached out directly to the individuals listed for further information.

113. Kalispell Indian Community of the Kalispell Reservation

• The Tribe expressed interest in assisting with outreach, so GCG provided a list of WAU records for both living and deceased Class Members to the Tribe.

114. Upper Skagit Indian Tribe of Washington

 On September 10, 2015, GCG representatives visited the BIA offices in Everett, Washington to collect information and documentation regarding living and deceased Class Members or eligible estates.

115. Ak Chin Indian Community of Papago Indians of Maricopa

• The Ak Chin Indian Community has been extremely helpful in locating Class Members on the WAU list. David Smith reached out to the Tribal Council on October 1, 2013, and they referred him to the Tribe's Enrollment Specialist. That specialist was provided the names of those identified by Interior as tribal members on the WAU list which resulted in a number of those individuals contacting either Class Counsel or GCG. Class Counsel received an updated list in response. GCG reviewed the information and updated its records or reached out directly to the individuals listed for further information.

- In addition, Mr. Smith discussed with the General Counsel's office pending estates as the Ak Chin Tribal Code provided a small estate procedure. Letters were written to heirs of known estates suggesting this procedure be utilized.
- GCG spoke with ITCA which was willing to assist with locating class members who were Ak Chin tribal members. GCG provided a list of WAU records for both living and deceased Class Members for each tribe as requested.

116. Paiute-Shoshone Tribe of Fallon

• GCG contacted the Tribe for assistance with the Tribal Outreach Project, and it agreed to assist. GCG provided the tribe with a list of WAU records for both living and deceased Class Members. On March 4, 2014, GCG received an updated list in response. GCG reviewed the information and updated its records or reached out directly to the individuals listed for further information.

117. Tule River Indian Tribe of the Tule River Indian Reservation

• On June 28, 2013, Class Counsel sent a list of WAU records for both living and deceased Class Members to Roxanne, Legal Assistant to the General Counsel's office. Subsequent to providing this list, GCG received information on 41 tribal members.

118. Yavapai-Apache Indian Community of the Camp Verde Reservation

• GCG spoke with ITCA which was willing to assist with locating class members who were tribal members of tribes that were Council members. GCG provided a list of WAU records for both living and deceased Class Members for each Tribe as requested.

• GCG contacted the Tribe for assistance with the Tribal Outreach Project, and it agreed to assist. GCG provided the Tribe with a paper list of WAU records for both living and deceased Class Members. On May 14, 2014, GCG received an updated list in response.

119. Smith River Rancheria of California

• GCG contacted the Tribe for assistance with the Tribal Outreach Project, and it agreed to assist. GCG provided the Tribe with a paper list of WAU records for both living and deceased Class Members. On May 15, 2014, GCG received an updated list in response. GCG reviewed the information and updated its records or reached out directly to the individuals listed for further information.

120. Skull Valley Band of Goshute Indians of Utah

• GCG contacted the Tribe for assistance with the Tribal Outreach Project. The Chairwoman at the tribal offices expressed interest in assisting with outreach, and GCG sent a list of WAU records for both living and deceased Class Members.

121. Port Gamble Indiana Community of the Port Gamble Reservation

GCG contacted the Tribe for assistance with the Tribal Outreach Project and sent a list of WAU records for both living and deceased Class Members.

122. Kaw Indian Tribe of Oklahoma

• GCG contacted the Tribe for assistance with the Tribal Outreach Project, and it agreed to assist. GCG provided the Tribe with a list of WAU records for both living and deceased Class Members. GCG received an updated list in response. GCG reviewed the information and updated its records or reached out directly to the individuals listed for further information.

123. Cocopah Tribe of Arizona

• GCG spoke with a representative of the Inter-Tribal Council of Arizona who stated that the ITCA was willing to assist with locating class members who were members of tribes that were Council members. ITCA requested and GCG provided a list of WAU records for both living and deceased Class Members for each Tribe as requested.

124. Paiute-Shoshone Tribe of Fallon Reservation & Colony

• GCG contacted the Tribe for assistance with the Tribal Outreach Project, and it agreed to assist. GCG provided the Tribe with a list of WAU records for both living and deceased Class Members. On March 4, 2014, GCG received an updated list in response. GCG reviewed the information and updated its records or reached out directly to the individuals listed for further information.

125. Squaxin Island Tribe of the Squaxin Island Reservation

• On March 17, 2015, David Smith reached out to the general counsel's office seeking assistance in identifying Class Members who were members of the Squaxin Island Tribe. He agreed to assist and referred Mr. Smith to the Enrollment Office for the Tribe. The Enrollment Office was provided a copy of the WAU list for living and deceased members of the Tribe. Subsequent to providing this list, GCG received information on 11 tribal members.

126. Havasupai Tribe of the Havasupai Reservation

• GCG spoke with ITCA which was willing to assist with locating class members who were members of the Tribe. GCG provided a list of WAU records for both living and deceased Class Members for each Tribe as requested.

• GCG also contacted the Tribe for assistance with the Tribal Outreach Project, and it agreed to assist. GCG provided the Tribe with a list of WAU records for both living and deceased Class Members. GCG received an updated list in response. GCG reviewed the information and updated its records or reached out directly to the individuals listed for further information.

127. Santa Rosa Indian Community of the Santa Rose Rancheria of California

• On October 4, 2013, Class Counsel provided the list of tribal members on the WAU list to the Tribe which responded with updated contact information. GCG reviewed the information and updated its records or reached out directly to the individuals listed for further information.

128. Capitan Grande Band of Diegueno Mission Indians of California

• GCG contacted the Tribe for assistance with the Tribal Outreach Project.

129. Yavapai-Prescott Tribe of the Yavapai Reservation

 GCG spoke with ITCA which was willing to assist with locating class members who were members of ITCA. GCG provided a list of WAU records for both living and deceased Class Members for each Tribe as requested.

130. Agua Caliente Band of Cahuilla Indians of the Agua Caliente Indian Reservation

On February 2, 2011, Class Counsel held a meeting at the Agua Caliente
 Indian Reservation at which the settlement was discussed and information was distributed,
 including claim forms, to facilitate the identification of Class Members and heirs of those
 who had passed.

• In addition, David Smith contacted the Tribal Council to assist in the identification of Class Members and heirs of estates. The Council has been extremely helpful in providing information upon which distributions can be made.

131. Big Valley Rancheria of Pomo & Pit River Indians of California

• GCG contacted the Tribe for assistance with the Tribal Outreach Project, and it agreed to assist. GCG provided the Tribe with a list of WAU records for both living and deceased Class Members. On December 2, 2013, GCG received an updated list in response. GCG reviewed the information and updated its records or reached out directly to the individuals listed for further information.

132. Picayune Rancheria of Chukchansi Indians of California

• GCG contacted the tribe for assistance with the Tribal Outreach Project, and it agreed to assist. GCG provided the Tribe with a list of WAU records for both living and deceased Class Members. On April 21, 2014, GCG received an updated list in response. GCG reviewed the information and updated its records or reached out directly to the individuals listed for further information.

133. Jamestown S'klallam Tribe of Washington

 On September 10, 2015, GCG representatives visited the BIA offices in Everett, Washington to collect information and documentation regarding living and deceased Class Members (or eligible estates).

134. Confederated Tribes of the Grand Rhonde Community of Oregon

• GCG contacted the Tribe for assistance with the Tribal Outreach Project, and it agreed to assist. GCG provided the Tribe with a list of WAU records for both living and

deceased Class Members. On April 28, 2014, GCG received an updated list in response. GCG reviewed the information and updated its records or reached out directly to the individuals listed for further information.

135. Northfork Rancheria of Mono Indians of California

• GCG contacted the Tribe for assistance with the Tribal Outreach Project.

136. Confederated Tribes of the Siletz Reservation

• GCG contacted the Tribe for assistance with the Tribal Outreach Project, and it agreed to assist. GCG provided the Tribe with a list of WAU records for both living and deceased Class Members. On March 28, 2014, GCG received an updated list in response. GCG reviewed the information and updated its records or reached out directly to the individuals listed for further information.

137. Mississippi Band of Choctaw Indians

- GCG contacted the Tribe for assistance with the Tribal Outreach Project, and it agreed to assist. GCG provided the Tribe with a list of WAU records for both living and deceased Class Members. However, no information was provided.
- On October 4, 2013, Class Counsel's office also reached out to the enrollment office of the Tribe seeking assistance.

138. Lower Elwha Tribal Community of the Lower Elwha Reservation

 On September 10, 2015, GCG representatives visited the BIA offices in Everett, Washington to collect information and documentation regarding living and deceased Class Members or eligible estates.

139. **Pueblo of Isleta**

• On October 3, 2013, Class Counsel provided list of WAU living and deceased Class Members to the Pueblo and the Tribe provided updated information. GCG reviewed the information and updated its records or reached out directly to the individuals listed for further information.

140. Coast Indian Community of Yurok Indians of the Resighini Rancheria

• GCG contacted the Tribe for assistance with the Tribal Outreach Project, and it agreed to assist. GCG provided the Tribe with a list of WAU records for both living and deceased Class Members. On April 25, 2014, GCG received an updated list in response. GCG reviewed the information and updated its records or reached out directly to the individuals listed for further information.

141. Shakopee Mdewakanton Sioux Community of Minnesota (Prior Lake)

• GCG contacted the tribe for assistance with the Tribal Outreach Project, and it agreed to assist. GCG provided the tribe with a list of WAU records for both living and deceased Class Members. On March 17, 2014, GCG received an updated list in response. GCG reviewed the information and updated its records or reached out directly to the individuals listed for further information.

142. Camp Band of the Diegueno Mission Indians of the Campo Indian Reservation

• GCG contacted the tribe for assistance with the Tribal Outreach Project, and it agreed to assist. GCG provided the Tribe with a list of WAU records for both living and deceased Class Members. On May 13, 2014, GCG received an updated list in response. GCG

reviewed the information and updated its records or reached out directly to the individuals listed for further information.

143. Santa Rosa Band of Cahuilla Mission Indians of the Santa Rosa Reservation

• On October 4, 2013, Class Counsel provided a list of WAU living and deceased Class Members to the Tribe. Class Counsel provided GCG with the Tribe's responses. GCG reviewed the information and updated its records or reached out directly to the individuals listed for further information.

144. Potawatomi-Pokagon Band

- David Smith contacted the tribe's legal department which agreed to assist with the Tribal Outreach Project.
- GCG contacted the Tribe for assistance with the Tribal Outreach Project in May 2014. The tribal representative, Bob Moody Jr. Vice Chair, agreed to publish names of missing persons and estates without documentation that would allow GCG to pay heirs in their Tribal newsletter "Pokegnek Yajdanawa." GCG sent Mr. Moody, the list of names and estates for publication.
- On December 7-11, 2015, GCG visited the Sault Ste. Marie regional office of the BIA in order to review the records in its office for the Potawatomi Pokagon Band. This was a very successful visit as GCG was able to obtain over 75% of all living WAU Class Members' updated contact information, and deceased Class Member records were updated with new contact information for their heirs or was provided with a probate order for which GCG will be able to distribute the estate award.

145. Big Sandy Rancheria of Mono Indians of California

• GCG prepared and sent a list of WAU living and deceased Class Members to the Intertribal Council of California.

146. Fort Bidwell Indian Community of Paiute Indians of the Fort Bidwell Reservation

• On October 4 2013, Class Counsel provided a list of WAU living and deceased Class Members to the Tribe. The Tribe responded with updated information. GCG reviewed the information and updated its records or reached out directly to the individuals listed for further information.

147. **Pueblo of Acoma**

• GCG contacted the Pueblo for assistance with the Tribal Outreach Project.

Although the tribe responded that it was unable to directly provide information, it agreed to contact those on the list of WAU living Class Members and potential heirs of eligible estates.

148. **Pueblo of Jemez**

• GCG contacted the Pueblo for assistance with the Tribal Outreach Project, and it agreed to assist. GCG provided the Pueblo with a list of WAU records for both living and deceased Class Members. On April 14, 2014, GCG received an updated list in response. GCG reviewed the information and updated its records or reached out directly to the individuals listed for further information.

149. Dry Creek Rancheria of Pomo Indians of California

 GCG contacted the Tribe for assistance with the Tribal Outreach Project in April 2014.

150. Pascua Yaqui Tribe of Arizona

- GCG spoke with ITCA which was willing to assist with locating class
 members who were members of tribes that were Council members. GCG provided a list of
 WAU records for both living and deceased Class Members for each tribe as requested.
 - Class Counsel David Smith will be returning to Pascua Yaqui in January 2016.

151. Upper Sioux Indian Community of the Upper Sioux Reservation

• GCG contacted the Tribe for assistance with the Tribal Outreach Project, and it agreed to assist. GCG provided the Tribe with a list of WAU records for both living and deceased Class Members. GCG received a list in response. GCG reviewed the information and updated its records or reached out directly to the individuals listed for further information.

152. **Pueblo of Santo Domingo**

• Class Counsel's office contacted the Governor at Pueblo of Santo Domingo and a list was sent on October 4, 2013. Class Counsel provided GCG with the Pueblo's responses. GCG reviewed the information and updated its records or reached out directly to the individuals listed for further information.

153. Kickapoo Tribe of Texas

• GCG contacted the Tribe for assistance with the Tribal Outreach Project, and it agreed to assist. GCG provided the tribe with a list of WAU records for both living and deceased Class Members. On April 10, 2014, GCG received an updated list in response. GCG reviewed the information and updated its records or reached out directly to the individuals listed for further information.

154. Blue Lake Rancheria of California

• GCG contacted the Tribe for assistance with the Tribal Outreach Project, and it agreed to assist. GCG provided the Tribe with a list of WAU records for both living and deceased Class Members. On April 23, 2014, GCG received an updated list in response. GCG reviewed the information and updated its records or reached out directly to the individuals listed for further information.

155. Yakima Public Domain

• On October 14-16, 2015 GCG representatives visited OST/BIA/Tribal headquarters in Toppenish, Washington to collect information and documentation regarding living and deceased Class Members (or eligible estates).

156. Robinson Rancheria of Pomo Indians of California

• On October 9, 2013, Class Counsel reached out to the enrollment office of the Robinson Rancheria of Pomo Indians to assist with finding individuals on the WAU list who were identified as members of that Rancheria. The enrollment office agreed to assist and a list was provided. Subsequent to providing this list, GCG received information on five tribal members.

157. Grand River Band - Ottawa

• On December 7-11, 2015, GCG visited the Sault Ste. Marie regional office of the BIA in order to review the records in its office regarding the Grand River Band - Ottawa. This was a very successful visit as GCG was able to obtain over 75% of all living WAU Class Members' updated contact information, and deceased Class Member records were

updated with new contact information for their heirs or was provided with a probate order for which GCG will be able to distribute the estate award.

158. Grand Traverse Band of Michigan

• GCG visited the regional BIA office that handles the administration for the Grand Traverse Band of Michigan during the week of December 7 -11. This was a very successful visit as GCG was able to obtain over 75% of all living WAU Class Members' updated contact information, and deceased Class Member records were updated with new contact information for their heirs or was provided with a probate order for which GCG will be able to distribute the estate's award.

159. Little River Band of Ottawa

• On December 7-11, 2015, GCG visited the Sault Ste. Marie regional office of the BIA in order to review the records in its office for the Little River Band of Ottawa. This was a very successful visit as GCG was able to obtain over 75% of all living WAU Class Members' updated contact information, and deceased Class Member records were updated with new contact information for their heirs or was provided with a probate order for which GCG will be able to distribute the estate award.

160. Sault Ste. Marie Tribe of Chippewa Indians of Michigan

• GCG visited the regional BIA office that handles the administration for the Sault Ste. Marie Tribe of Chippewa Indians of Michigan during the week of December 7-11. This was a very successful visit as GCG was able to obtain over 75% of all living WAU Class Members' updated contact information, and deceased Class Member records were

updated with new contact information for their heirs or was provided with a probate order for which GCG will be able to distribute the estate award.

161. Bay Mills Indian Community of Michigan

• GCG worked with the regional BIA office in Sault Ste. Marie which handles the administration of the Bay Mills Indian Community of Michigan. This was a very successful visit as GCG was able to obtain over 75% of all living WAU Class Members' updated contact information, and deceased Class Member records were updated with new contact information for their heirs so that further outreach to the family can be conducted or GCG was able to obtain a probate order for which GCG will be able to distribute the estate award.

162. Little Traverse Bay Band Odawa

• On December 7-11, 2015, GCG visited the Sault Ste. Marie regional office of the BIA in order to review the records in its office for the Little Traverse Bay Band Odawa Tribe. This was a very successful visit as GCG was able to obtain over 75% of all living WAU Class Members' updated contact information, and deceased Class Member records were updated with new contact information for their heirs or was provided with a probate order for which GCG will be able to distribute the estate award.

163. Other Tribes

• Where a Tribe or Pueblo is not listed on this list it may be because additional information was unnecessary. However, GCG and Class Counsel have contacted many other tribal communities, requesting assistance with Class Members where additional contact information was needed, or where the identification of heirs would be helpful in obtaining

probate information so that GCG could distribute the deceased Class Members' award. In several instances, GCG provided lists of these individual Class Members to the Tribes but was unable to obtain further information which would allow GCG to update WAU contact information or conduct further outreach to relatives of estates.

• As such, Class Counsel and GCG are conducting further outreach and visits to 15 regional BIA offices and associated Tribes in the first quarter of 2016 which will allow research of approximately 14,200 living and 24,150 deceased Class Members. The regional offices which are slated to be visited include several agencies in Oklahoma, New Mexico, Arizona, California and Nevada. Additionally, Wisconsin. South Dakota and Washington agencies will be included.